ORBAY
COUNCIL g ~a =y
Wednesday, 9 December 2015

4 TRANSPORT WORKING PARTY N\

A meeting of Transport Working Party will be held on
Thursday, 17 December 2015

commencing at 4.00 pm

The meeting will be held in the Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus,
K Torquay, TO1 3DR /

Members of the Committee

Councillor Excell (Chairman)

Councillor Brooks Councillor Mills
Councillor Darling (S) Councillor Morey
Councillor Doggett Councillor King (Vice-Chair)

A prosperous and healthy Torbay

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or
language please contact:
lan Jones, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR
(01803) 207835
Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk
www.torbay.gov.uk

(1)




10.

1.

TRANSPORT WORKING PARTY
AGENDA

Apologies for absence

Minutes of Last Meeting

To confirm as a correct record the Action Notes of the meeting of
the Transport Working Party held on 13" August 2015 and to
receive any feedback.

Urgent Items

Torre Reversal - Objections to Advertised Order

Due to a conflict of interest, Cllr Excell will leave the room during
this item and CllIr King will Chair the meeting.

Transport Asset Management Plan

Potential review of Torbay Ring Road Signing and TRO's

Western Corridor and South Devon Link Road - Verbal Updates

on Schemes

LTP Implementation Plan - Verbal Update
Edginswell Station - Verbal update

Any Other Business

Date of Next Meeting
The next meeting of the Transport Working Party will be held in
June 2016 — exact date to be confirmed in due course.

(2)

(Pages 3 - 14)

(Pages 15 - 64)

(Pages 65 - 79)

(Pages 80 - 84)



Agenda Item 2

ORBAY
UNCLL =y

Minutes of the Transport Working Party
13 August 2015
-: Present :-

Councillor Anne Brooks, Councillor Steve Darling, Councillor lan Doggett, Councillor
Robert Excell (Chairman), Councillor Derek Mills, Councillor Mike Morey and Councillor
Mark King (Vice-Chair)

(Also in attendance: lan Jones, Pat Steward, David Whiteway, Fran Hughes, Shirley
Hopkinson, Councillor Nicole Amil, Councillor Vic Ellery, Councillor Richard Haddock,
Councillor Terry Manning, Mayor Gordon Oliver, Councillor Julien Parrott and Councillor
Jackie Stockman)

198. Apologies for absence
None
199. Appointment of Chairperson

Clir Excell opened the meeting advising that he is the Executive Lead for
Community Services which incorporates Highways and would address the first item
to elect a Chair and Vice-Chair of the Working Party. The Chairperson would then
chair the remainder of the meeting.

Clir Excell requested nominations for Chair. ClIr King proposed Clir Excell as Chair
and was seconded by ClIr Mills. Clir Morey proposed himself and was seconded by
Clir Darling. Voting followed with 3 votes for Clir Excell and 2 for Clir Morey. Clir
Excell was accepted as Chairman.

Clir Excell requested nominations for Vice-Chair. Clir Mills proposed CliIr King and
was seconded by Clir Brooks. All agreed and ClIr King was accepted as Vice-
Chair.

200. Any Other Business
ClIr Excell advised that AOB would be brought forward to the start of the meeting to
allow members of the public to speak and ensure that they did not need to attend
the whole meeting.
Clir Haddock addressed the meeting and gave Mrs Curtis’ apologies. Unfortunately

there was a mix up with the location of the meeting and she attended Brixham
Town Hall. The petition that she had intended to present to the Working Party has

Page 3



Transport Working Party Thursday, 13 August 2015

now been emailed in and currently has 98 signatures. The subject of the petition is
to request double yellow lines at the junction of Mathill Road.

Cllr Haddock handed round a number of photos which highlight the issues that are
being experienced at the junction and has been contentious for many years. The
area is blocked from 7.30am — 7.30pm due to visitors to the nursing home at the
junction and is also a bus route.

Clir Haddock also requested that the roundabout is also looked at as it is difficult to
see the roundabout.

Clir Ellery advised that all five Brixhnam Councillors were in attendance at the
meeting to support the petition and request. He advised that the primary school in
the vicinity has been extended and is due to take in an extra 70 children from
September which will result in an increase of traffic. There are regular near misses
amounting to three a week. Clir Ellery stated that he is concerned about the
visibility from the roundabout to Longcroft Avenue which does not have a clear view
due to parked cars. There is also an issue of cars not stopping at the roundabout
when they approach from Horsepool Street. This is now a major issue, escalating
over the last 6 years.

ClIr Ellery is concerned that the increase of traffic from September will compound
the problem and feels that it is wise to consider the issue urgently and cannot wait
until the next meeting in December.

CliIr Excell observed that the double yellow lines would need claws on them to
prevent disabled drivers from parking on them.

ClIr King queried if there is adequate enforcement in the area.

IJ confirmed that there is adequate enforcement within the area. 1J advised that
there is currently no budget for double yellow lines unless it is part of a capital
scheme, funds were requested as part of a planning application, or part of the Road
Safety Priorities. Numerous requests for double yellow lines are received and
these have to be prioritised according to their implications and budget provision.

IJ advised there is not a collision issue in the vicinity of the roundabout and that it
was originally constructed to a larger size to allow large vehicles to be able to make
a U-turn if they were unable to access the roads off the roundabout.

Cllr Haddock suggested that the roundabout could be raised without kerbstones to
allow this to continue especially as at the moment the roundabout is flat and the
white paint has been scrubbed out by vehicles.

Clir Morey explained further the precise location of the issue which includes a blind
spot for traffic where the road bears left. Clir Morey queried the cost of a traffic
order. 1J confirmed that the average cost of an order if £1500 - £2000. ClIr Morey
asked if there would be a possibility of Section 106 money to fund the works as
there had been two major building enlargements in the vicinity. Pat Steward
advised that generally when requesting money under Section 106 these are

Page 4



Transport Working Party Thursday, 13 August 2015

normally targeted at specific projects. £5,600 was requested from St Marys
towards highway safety but this may be for a specific project.

Clir Stockman felt that there will be further parking issues created and queried if
bollards and narrowing of the road to create priorities would be a better option.

Clir Mills queried how much it would cost to add a bump to the roundabout as a
short term measure. 1J advised that the cost would not be high but funding would
still be an issue.

IJ advised that the Road Safety Initiatives priorities, on the Agenda, are based on
evidence of collisions and that it is up to the Working Party if they accept these or if
they decide if other issues are more important. There is however a fixed amount of
funding for the priorities.

Cllr Manning stated that Mathill Road is full with cars parked along it and it is
impossible to see what is coming out of the junctions and with the extension to the
school there will be more cars using this area. ClIr Excell considered that there is a
need there and that funding could be looked at through Section 106’s and that this
could be considered for the list of priorities.

Clir Mills proposed that it is included within the priorities list. Clir Doggett seconded
this and agreed CliIr Excell’s earlier point that the double yellow lines would need
claws on them to prevent Blue Badge holders from parking on them. ClIr King felt
that the issue should be proactive and not reactive, taking action to save lives.

Clir Morey felt that if Section 106 funding is available for this then that should be
used instead of funding from the road safety Initiatives. ClIr Excell agreed with this.

Clir Haddock advised that there is a development due to start in the area of the
Police Station and all the traffic for this development would be using the roundabout
and suggested that Section 106 money from this development be used. Clir Ellery
agreed that there should be claws on the double yellow lines.

Clir Morey advised that Development Management Committee have requested
£40k Section 106 funding from the Wall Park Development for Century Road and
Gillard Road. Pat Steward to look at this and see if any of this funding can be used.

Recommendation:
That Mathill Road is considered to be added to the Road Safety Initiatives
priorities as part of this Agenda

Proposed by: Clir Mills
Seconded by: Cllr Doggett
In favour: All

CliIr Parrott advised that he had two issues that he would like to be considered by

the Working Party. These are concerning issues between Quinta Road and
Windsor Road and the Ellacombe CPZ.

Page 5



Transport Working Party Thursday, 13 August 2015

201.

202.

ClIr Parrott advised that a 2 year old child had recently been hit by a car in Windsor
Road and that due to car parking issues this is a dangerous area. The part of
Windsor Road where the issue lies is the lower part where it turns into Ellacombe
Church Road and requested that the issue is looked at before another accident
takes place.

Clir Parrott highlighted that Quinta Road is used as a race track in the evenings with
cars parked on both sides of the road being damaged and requested that traffic
calming is installed. ClIr Parrott requested that this is added to the priority list to be
considered for next year.

CliIr Parrott advised that issues are being experienced since the addition of Cavern
Road to the Ellacombe CPZ with displaced parking in Hoxton Road, Warberrry
Road West and the top of Princes Road. Representatives from the roads would like
to know what to do with regards to being considered for a CPZ next year.

|IJ advised that both of these issues can be dealt with as Service Enquiries to
Highways. Speed readings have previously been taken on Quinta Road and this
can be added back onto the list for further readings to be taken.

Clir Darling queried why half an hour had been spent at the start of the meeting on
Any Other Business and asked if this is what happened at meetings now. Clir
Excell advised that it was brought forward to prevent the Brixham attendees from
having to sit through the whole meeting.

Minutes of Last Meeting
The previous minutes were agreed as a true and accurate record.
Windy Corner Junction Improvement

IJ reminded the Working Party of the history of the Windy Corner Junction
Improvement Scheme which has previously been considered by them. The existing
recommendation was agreed in 2012, with the options originally being consulted on
in 2006. Option 1 was the preferred option from this consultation, however once
this was taken forward and advertised it received around 200 objections and had to
be looked at again. The Galmpton Residents Association suggested their own
proposal for consideration and a further consultation was held in 2011. The
Working Party then recommended Option 2 with amendments in 2012.

This scheme wasn’t progressed at that time due to funding issues, but was included
in the funding bid for the Western Corridor. Funding is now in place with completion
of the scheme required by March 2018. Consultants have been asked to look at
the options for the scheme again. The results show that the original widening is still
the best option. The scheme proposed by Galmpton Residents Association could
also deliver similar benefits, however would require land take and service
diversions and is unlikely to be deliverable. It is recommended that the option
approved in 2012 should be taken forward and implemented.

Page 6



Transport Working Party Thursday, 13 August 2015

Clir Mills asked how the alternative Option 2 differed and suggested that Option 1
could be used as a future bolt-on to Option 2. 1J confirmed that the difference was
in the location of the bus stop in an attempt to move it closer to its original position
and a change to the Bascombe Road access. 1J confirmed that the options have
been considered by the consultants and that in the future the additional lanes can
be included within a future improvement of the junction. He advised that if Option 4
is considered then any future scheme would require widening into the Common in
the same way.

Cllr Haddock advised that this had been brought up by the Community Partnership
who would like a slip lane, together with a footpath and a low wall along the full
length of the Common. Clir Haddock felt that “yellow boxes” should be included at
the junctions shown in Appendix 3 to keep the junctions free for emerging traffic.

Clir Morey advised that the Brixham Community Partnership and Chamber of Trade
don’t remember any consultation taking place in Brixham however he understands
the need to work to the 2018 deadline, but was concerned that Brixham residents
have not had the opportunity to give their view and may have good suggestions.
Clir Morey advised that they are happy to arrange a consultation to take place.

IJ advised that the 2018 deadline is due to fixed term funding and it is considered
that Option 2 will suit all. It is still possible that there could be objections to the
Common ‘land take’ resulting in a potential Inquiry taking place. Clir Morey queried
if it would be too late if a consultation takes place and is then brought back to the
Working Party in December. 1J advised that he is unable to answer this as there is
a risk of objections which would slow the procedure down. Clir Morey suggested
that the decision could then be considered under delegated powers. 1J
recommended that any consultation should be on the basis of an approved option
only.

Cllr Haddock advised that when the previous consultation took place at Churston
Grammar School, two thirds of the attendees were from Brixham, with three
objectors from Galmpton.

Clir Stockman queried how much funding was available for the scheme. She also
advised that Patrick Carney attended the Community Partnership meeting and
advised that 80% agreed to the scheme. When pushed he confirmed that a total of
42 people attended and 80% of this agreed. Clir Stockman advised that she has
received numerous emails relating to issues on Long Road and how these issues
are going to be alleviated. She felt that if a decision is made too quick then
something could be missed.

IJ confirmed that there is £200k - £300k of funding available for the scheme as this
is what was allocated with the Western Corridor scheme, which involves a number
of improvements being made between Windy Corner and Churscombe Cross.
Funding was requested from the Local Transport Board and the amount allocated is
what was requested, however they are expected to underspend where possible.

Cllr Morey queried if consideration had been given to the requirements of cyclists
and pedestrians. |J advised that facilities are included at the Windy Corner end.

Page 7



Transport Working Party Thursday, 13 August 2015

203.

Cllr Morey queried if a roundabout option had been considered. 1J confirmed that
this was one of the layouts modelled and was found to be not as beneficial as traffic
signals. Cllr Haddock advised that there is an old bunker under the junction which
needs to be taken into consideration when works are taking place.

Recommendations:

That Option 2 Alternate version as shown in Appendix 3 is adopted, with the
addition of yellow hatched boxes on the junctions and crossings.

Proposed by: Clir Mills

Seconded by: ClIr King

In favour: 3 in favour, 1 abstained

That options for a future long term strategy for the junction are developed for
further consultation and inclusion within subsequent funding bids.

In favour: All

Clirs Ellery, Stockman, Manning left the meeting

Road Safety Initiative 2015/2016

|IJ advised that the Road Casualty Reduction Report is usually presented to the
Working Party in June, however due to the meeting being delayed this has already

been published and is available on the Council’s website, link below.

www.torbay.gov.uk/roadcasualtyreductionreport2014.doc

|J advised that the Road Safety Initiatives report provides Members with an update
on the road safety initiatives and Safer Routes Schemes completed to date together
with those previously approved schemes which have not been completed.
Appendix 4 shows the schemes that are recommended to be implemented over the
next year.

The proposed schemes are:-

A3022 Riviera Way, junction Browns Bridge Road, Torquay
A379 Teignmouth Road, Torquay

A379 Dartmouth Road (locally known as Kennels Road), Brixham
20mph zones outside schools

Clir Mills queried if it was worth progressing with the scheme for Riviera Way due to
the current works on the South Devon Link Road or if it would be better to wait for
the road to be completed. 1J confirmed that it was proposed to leave this scheme
until later in the year to enable any new concerns to be reviewed. CliIr Mills felt that
the new road would need to be in use for a good year before any review is carried
out. ClIr Mills suggest that this scheme is removed and that Mathill Road, Birxham
replaces it.

Page 8



Transport Working Party Thursday, 13 August 2015

Clir Darling requested clarification on the 20mph zones around schools and felt that
the zones should be at all times and not at school times. Cllr Morey queried if there
was a cost difference between the two and whether it would cause confusion for
drivers. ClIr Excell considered that the zones should be in place 24/7 as you don’t
know who is using school premises throughout the day. 1J advised that there are a
number of issues in connection with 20mph zones and that the Police do not
enforce them. They are expected to be self enforcing. The zones that are variable
will have flashing lights to indicate to drivers when the zone is in force. Traffic
Regulation Orders are required for those that are permanent. Clir Doggett pointed
out that if you are hit at a 20mph you are more likely to survive than if hit at a higher
speed and would like to see the zone as permanent. ClIr Excell advised that the
slower speeds will be beneficial as more people start driving electric cars as these
cannot be heard, even at higher speeds.

Clir Brooks felt that variable zones would be better as the flashing lights used with
these would make the motorist more likely to notice the zone. |J advised that the
costs are variable as more apparatus are required with the variable, speed limit,
however there is a cost for Traffic Regulation Orders and signs for the permanent
restrictions.

Clir Darling also wished to state that he felt that 20mph limits should be considered
within the wider community and not just outside of schools. The request was noted
by the Chairman.

Clir Haddock queried if the flashing lights at Tweenaway are manual or automatic.
IJ confirmed that these are automatic. Cllir Haddock advised that he regularly
passes these at 4am and they are on. |J advised that there is currently an issue
with the supply of some of the equipment which is currently with the manufacturer.

Clir Doggett proposed that the Mathill Road issue is added to the list and Cllir Morey
seconded it.

Recommendation:

That the schemes shown in Appendix 4 are implemented with the addition of
Mathill Road to help to reduce the number of vehicle collisions and related
casualties across the bay area, in the following order

A379 Teignmouth Road, Torquay

A379 Dartmouth Road (locally known as Kennels Road), Brixham
Mathill Road, Brixham

A3022 Riviera Way, junction Browns Bridge Road, Torquay
20mph zones outside schools

Proposed by: Clir Mills
Seconded by: Clir Doggett
In favour: Four in favour

e Mathill Road, Brixham

e A379 Teignmouth Road, Torquay
A379 Dartmouth Road (locally known as Kennels Road), Brixham

Page 9



Transport Working Party Thursday, 13 August 2015

204.

205.

o A3022 Riviera Way, junction Browns Bridge Road, Torquay
e 20mph zones outside schools

Proposed by: Clir Morey
Seconded by: ClIr King
In favour: Three in favour

Following voting, it was agreed that the priority order of the schemes will be :

A379 Teignmouth Road, Torquay

A379 Dartmouth Road (locally known as Kennels Road), Brixham
Mathill Road, Brixham

A3022 Riviera Way, junction Browns Bridge Road, Torquay
20mph zones outside schools

Mayor Gordon Oliver joined the meeting.
Minor Congestion Relief Schemes 2015/16 and 2016/17

IJ advised that the previous allocation of funding for the Bolton Cross scheme was
used to purchase the Thresher’s site and prepare it for the improvements to the
junction to be carried out. This has however been delayed for a number of reasons
related to the marketing of the site and there is now pressure to move this scheme
forward under the Congestion Relief Programme. The scheme provides an extra
lane on the Market Street side of the junction removing one phase of traffic lights to
improve the traffic flow and improve the air quality. It is also intended to look at
schemes for the following year as there is expected to be a reduced allocation for
2016/17. The improvements proposed for 2016/17 are for CCTV to be installed at
Manor Corner, improved signal systems at Seaway Road and the installation of
additional Free Text signs.

Recommendation:

That the junction improvement at Bolton Cross is implemented as the Minor
Congestion Relief Scheme for 2015/16 and that the further recommendations
in Option 1 are progressed in the 2016/17 financial years.

Proposed by: Clir Morey
Seconded by: ClIr Darling
In favour: All

Grand Hotel Roundabout, Torbay Road, Torquay

|J advised that he had been requested by the Mayor to look at the possibility of
changing signalised junctions to roundabouts. Following this the junction at the
Grand Hotel was looked at in more detail by a consultant which included modelling
of the junction as it is and with a roundabout, accommodating growth. As there is
also a signalised pedestrian crossing it was also decided to look at pedestrian and
cycling links through the junction and to the railway. It is proposed to progress a
detailed scheme in readiness to include within future bids for funding.

Page 10



Transport Working Party Thursday, 13 August 2015

206.

Clir Doggett stated that the crossing is well used, together with the crossing at The
Kings Drive. 1J advised that they intend to look at the bigger picture in more details.
Pat Steward advised that they are happy to include this in bids for the next round of
LTB funding.

Clir Darling queried if further consultation would be carried out and if clarification
could be given on user groups that would be included in the consultation. 1J
confirmed that Focus Groups and Stakeholders would be consulted, however he is
also open to suggestions of others who should be consulted. Clir Darling requested
that IJ circulates separately, details of who is included in the Focus Groups to
enable suggestions to be made.

Recommendation:

That Highways continue to carry out further detailed design work, in
readiness to progress the scheme to construction, as and when suitable
funding becomes available and that the scheme is included within bids for
future funding opportunities.

Proposed by: ClIr Mills
Seconded by: ClIr King
In favour: All

Policy for Replacement of Signalised Junctions

|IJ advised that he was asked to review signalised junctions and a desktop study
was carried out looking at each junction and if there was any advantage in
changing to a roundabout at the end of the residual life of the equipment, in a
similar way to the Cadewell Lane junction roundabout which was changed 16 years
ago.

IJ highlighted that there are a number of issues to consider when looking at the
junctions including visibility, junction layout and the balance of the traffic flow. It
was also decided to look at pedestrian crossings in a similar way to see if would be
appropriate to change these depending on the speed of the road, visibility and
vulnerability of users.

The junctions considered to be suitable to be considered for change are:

Hele Road/Broomhill Way

Torbay Road/Rathmore Road, Torquay (Grand Hotel)
Esplanade Road/Garfield Road, Paignton

Brixham Road/Borough Road, Paignton

The signalised crossings considered to be suitable to be changed are:

Belgrave Road/Church Street, Torquay

Torquay Road/St Pauls Road, Paignton
Esplanade Road/Lower Polsham Road, Paignton
Middle Street, Brixham

Page 11



Transport Working Party Thursday, 13 August 2015

207.

Pimlico, Torquay

Lymington Road, Torquay

Lymington Road/Wrights Lane, Torquay
Hele Road/Truro Avenue, Torquay

Clir Haddock suggested that the lights from White Rock should be looked at as
there are so many of them and it is confusing as you come over the brow of the hill
as to which one you should be looking at. ClIr Mills considered that the Western
Corridor needs looking at due to the amount of traffic lights along it and that there is
ample room for roundabouts to be installed.

Mayor Oliver thanked 1J for putting together the report to establish in principle the
long term strategy to reduce the cost of replacing signals where suitable and
welcomes suggestions. There have been a lot of complaints about the ring Road
due to synchronisation and timing which also needs to be reviewed. Mayor Oliver
also felt it a good idea to look at replacing signalised pedestrian crossings where
possible.

Pat Steward was aware that there are synchronisation issues at the new
development, however with measures already taken traffic is moving 3 minutes
guicker on average through this section of road. Pat Steward queried if there was a
clause on the Western Corridor improvements where if the lights are changed to
roundabouts that funding would have to be paid back. 1J advised that he is not
aware of any.

Cllr Haddock queried what will happen to the section of the Western Corridor from
White Rock to Windy Corner, if this would change. 1J advised that there are no
plans to widen this section of road at the present time.

Recommendation:

1. That the junctions identified in the report are considered for replacement
with an alternative arrangement such as a roundabout, as future funding
initiatives or when the existing signal apparatus has reached the end of
its residual life.

2. That signalised crossings identified in the report are considered in the
same manner for replacement with lower maintenance crossing options
such as zebra crossings.

Proposed by: ClIr King

Seconded by: ClIr Mills

In favour: All

Mayor Gordon Oliver left the meeting

Summary of LTB Programme 15/16 - Verbal Update

Local Transport Board — David Whiteway advised that this is part of the Local
Enterprise Partnership and previous funding bids for the Western Corridor and

Page 12



Transport Working Party Thursday, 13 August 2015

208.

209.

Torre Traffic reversal have been successful. Bids are being prepared for the next
round of funding with detailed schemes. These include:-

e Paignton Town Centre to include:
- Traffic and pedestrian improvements
- Paignton Railway Station refurbishment
- Penwill Way junction improvements
- Clennon Valley to Paignton Town Centre Cycle Route
e Torquay Harbourside including Grand Hotel — walking, cycling and traffic
improvements
e Brixham Transport Hub including Park and Ride facilities, to include
widening of Monksbridge Road

Torre Railway Station is not being included in this round of bids as funding has
been sourced from s106 and extra CCTV has been delivered. A385 Totnes Road
scheme has been deferred due to Collaton St Mary masterplan proposals.
Improvements to bus links to Exeter may be deferred due to lack of support from
Stagecoach.

Pat Steward highlighted that he has been informed that there is less funding this
time from Heart of the South West, therefore it will not be as easy to gain funding.

Clir Excell advised that he sits on the Board and one of the reasons that Torbay has
been so successful is due to the amount of information they have provided in their
applications.

Clir Darling queried if there was an update on Real Time Information. David
Whiteway advised that there has been a delay due to a technical issue in gaining
information from Stagecoach, resulting in Torbay being moved down the queue for
this information. Access has now been gained to the system and is currently being
tested. A number of black poles have been installed across the Bay in readiness
for screens to be attached to them imminently.

Revised Implementation Plan for Local Transport Plan - Verbal Update

David Whiteway advised that the Strategy to 2026 document details the schemes
and what is being proposed. A new plan is due to be written in September, with
consultation taking place in October/November, to be presented at the next
Transport Working Party in December. The Plan is then due to be presented to Full
Council in early February 2016.

Review of A Boards - Verbal

IJ Jones advised that a document is in the process of being prepared for
consultation on A Boards in Town Centres. There is currently a voluntary
agreement in place, which unfortunately is not working. It is proposed to introduce
a licensing system for A Boards, however this may be controversial. Cllr Darling
advised that he has recently met with the Guide Dogs Association who raised
concerns over the regulation of A Boards within the Bay.

Page 13



Transport Working Party Thursday, 13 August 2015

210. Date of Next Meeting

17" December 2015, 4.00pm, Meadfoot Room

Page 14



Agenda Item 4

ORBAY
COUNCL. ity

Meeting: Transport Working Party Date: 17" December 2015
Wards Affected: Tormohun
Report Title: Torre Reversal — Objections to Advertised Traffic Regulation Orders

Executive Lead Contact Details: Councillor R Excell, Executive Lead for
Community Services

Supporting Officer Contact Details: John Clewer, Senior Engineer - Highways
Development & Traffic

1. Purpose

1.1  This reportis in response to a number of objections received following the
advertising of two Traffic Regulation Orders required to implement directional
changes in traffic flow to allow the construction of the forthcoming Torquay Town
Centre Access Scheme, known as the ‘Torre Reversal scheme’.

2. Proposed Decision

2.1 Itis recommended that members support the implementation of the advertised
Traffic Regulation Orders as per APPENDIX 1.

3. Action Needed

3.1 Following the recommendation of this Working Party the issue will be referred to
the Assistant Director — Community Services, in consultation with the Executive
Lead for Planning, Transport and Housing for a decision.

4. Summary

4.1 Itis proposed to implement a new road scheme bringing town centre traffic
improvements in Torquay from Torre to Castle Circus. The scheme has been
designed and is due to be implemented using funding, secured following a
Business Case submission to the Heart of the South West Local Enterprise
Partnership (LEP).

4.2  The Transport Working Party, recommended the scheme at its Extraordinary
Meeting on 15th January 2015. Whilst on the 5" February the proposal was
presented to and agreed by the elected Mayor and deputy Mayor, as well as
securing support of the Authority’s Senior Executive Group consisting of Members
and Senior Officers.

4.3 The Scheme also received the support of local Community Partnership Groups.

Page 15



Supporting Information

5.
5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

Position

This report is in response to objections received following the advertising of a
number of restrictions required to implement a new road scheme bringing town
centre traffic improvements in Torquay from Torre to Castle Circus. This includes
reversing the flow of traffic along Union Street, and, improving junctions at Castle
Circus, Abbey Road / Tor Hill Road, and at the top and bottom of Trematon
Avenue. The scheme has been designed and is due to be implemented using
funding, secured following a Business Case submission to the Heart of the South
West Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP).

The scheme will not only see traffic being able to get into Torre and the Town
Centre more easily, but will also reduce delays and congestion and improve air
quality. Pedestrians and cyclists will also benefit by new crossings and
opportunities for improved routes.

A public exhibition was held on the 7th January 2015 at the Assembly Rooms,
Torquay Town Hall, where over 100 people attended and provided verbal and
written feedback upon the overall scheme as well as specific variations upon how
traffic should be managed southbound from Trematon Avenue to Castle Circus
along Union Street.

Two press releases before and during Christmas 2014 promoted the public
exhibition to support an on-line and social media publicity campaign, direct emailing
and contacts to specific local business, residents, and community groups including
by local Members.

The Transport Working Party, recommended the scheme at its Extraordinary
Meeting on 15th January 2015.

Whilst on the 5™ February 2015 the proposal was presented to and agreed by the
elected Mayor and deputy Mayor, as well as securing support of the Authority’s
Senior Executive Group consisting of Members and Senior Officers.

The Scheme also received the support of local Community Partnership Groups.

Members voted to support a scheme whereby all traffic moved southbound along
Union Street from Torre to the Magistrates Court, then turn left into Trematon
Avenue and follow the gyratory system around Town Hall and the adjacent car park
as currently. Traffic would still only be allowed to move northwards up Union Street
from Castle Circus to Trematon Avenue, but now would be forced to turn right down
Trematon Avenue. Traffic would also be permitted to turn right into Tor Hill Road at
the Abbey Road signals.

Page 16



5.5

5.6

6.1

6.2

7.1

8.1

9.1

Further details of the origins of the scheme, along with outline design plans, can be
found via the following link:

www.torbay.gov.uk/ttca.htm

The changes to the Traffic Regulation Orders, required to revoke the no right turn at
the Abbey Road / Tor Hill Road junction (Central Church) and change of direction
on Union Street were advertised both on site, in the local media (e.g. Herald
Express) and the authority website during the period 18™ November — 8™
December 2015 Plans attached as APPENDIX 1.

The purpose of this report is that, following the advertising of the two Traffic
Regulation Orders, a number of objections were received from local residents and
interested parties (see APPENDIX 2) which need to be considered by members.
These have been considered by officers and comments can be found in
APPENDIX 3.

Possibilities and Options

Option 1
It is recommended that members support the implementation of the advertised
Traffic Regulation Orders as per APPENDIX 1.

Option 2
Do not support the implementation of the proposed Traffic Regulation Orders.

Preferred Solution/Option

Members are recommended that item 6, option 1 above, would be the most
appropriate option.

Consultation

Consultation has been undertaken with Council ward members and major
stakeholders. Changes to the existing Traffic Regulation Orders have been
advertised (see 5.5 above) and residents have had the opportunity to make
comment.

Risks
If the changes to the existing Traffic Regulation Orders are not approved due to
objections, it will not be possible to progress the Torre Reversal Scheme and

funding, secured following a Business Case submission to the Heart of the South
West Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), will have to be returned.

Page 17


http://www.torbay.gov.uk/index/yourservices/transportandstreets/transportpolicy/localtransportboard/ttca.htm

Appendices:

Appendix 1 — Shows a copy of the adverts and a plan of the proposals to alter the
existing Traffic Regulation Orders

Appendix 2 — Copies of the objections received.
Appendix 3 — Details of the objections and highways responses.

Additional Information:
None

Documents available in Members’ Rooms:
None

Background Papers:
None.

Page 18



AR R \ P P AR

“§69ZZ000L A3AINS I2UBUPIQ S1L0Z SIY6M aseqejep pue wbuidoa umold @
< - N\ P - 8 / /..\

’

peoy |IlH 401 ol
peoy |lIH J0] j0 uonounf woly
Japio uiny Jybu ou Buysixe axoray 2~

anuaAy uojewsal] [~
0} MOy wnuinge] yum uonounl woyj |
1seg yinog Aepp auQ 0} Moy wnuingeT
0} aNuUsAY Uojewal] yYym uonaunf woly +

1sam yuoN Aepp suQ wouy 39ans uoun | A\
uo Japio Aem auo Buiisixa aslonay /

Aenblo| - awayos |eS1aAdy a0 |
_\ - suonjesajje OY1 - 9|eds 0002: ) [

B O S—— -



NOTICE OF PROPOSALS
BOROUGH OF TORBAY (TOR HILL ROAD, TORQUAY) (PROHIBITION OF RIGHT TURN)
(REVOCATION) ORDER 2015

Torbay Council proposes to make the above Order under the relevant provisions of the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984, the effect of which would be to amend the existing measures in the following specified
lengths of roads in Torquay, as follows:-

Schedule 1: Revocations

The County of Devon {Tor Hill Road, Torquay) (Prohibition of Turning Movements) Order 1996 is revoked
insofar as it relates to vehicles turning from Tor Hill Road into Tor Hill Road (existing one way section) at the
Abbey Road Junction

Documents giving more detailed particulars of the Order, which includes plans illustrating the lengths of road
affected, may be inspected between 9:00am and 5:00pm each working day at the Torbay Council
Connections Office, Electric House, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR. The documentation may also be
viewed online at the following web address: www.torbay.cov.uk/proposedtros

All objections and other representations relating to the Order must be submitted in writing to the address
given below and must arrive no later than 8™ December 2015 and all objections must specify the grounds on
which they are made

Dated: 18" November 2015
Residents & Visitors Services
Highways Management,
ORBAY Torbay Council,
COUNCIL. <~ = Town Hall,

Castle Circus,
Torquay, TQ1 3DR

Page 20



NOTICE OF PROPOSALS
BOROUGH OF TORBAY (UNION STREET, TORQUAY) (ONE WAY) ORDER 2015

Torbay Council proposes to make the above Order under the relevant provisions of the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984, the effect of which would be to amend the existing measures in the following specified
lengths of roads in Torquay, as follows:-

Schedule 1: One Way Streets

road name length of road direction

Union Street From its junction with Castle Circus to its In a north-easterly
junction with Trematon Avenue direction

Union Street From its junction with Trematon Avenue ta its In a south-westerly
junction with Laburnum Row direction

Schedule 2: Revocations

The County of Devon (Various Streets, Torquay) (One Way) (Consolidation) Order 1996 insofar as it
relates to the sections of road described in Schedule 1

Documents giving more detailed particulars of the Order, which includes plans illustrating the lengths of road
affected, may be inspected between 9:00am and 5:00pm each working day at the Torbay Council
Connections Office, Electric House, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR. The documentation may also be
viewed online at the following web address: www.torbay.gov.uk/proposedtros

All objections and other representations relating to the Order must be submitted in writing to the address
given below and must arrive no later than 8" December 2015 and all objections must specify the grounds on
which they are made.

Dated: 18" November 2015
Residents & Visitors Services,
Highways Management,
ORBA Torbay Council,
COUNCIL et Town Hall,

Castle Circus,
Torquay, TQ1 3DR.

Page 21



Agenda ltem 4
Appendix 2

i

2 l - .
Krviunsnch §gmo

— y
,1 I vs IM ,Df-*‘——\

TEY Gt

YOI Vo
PR LA My

N e o0
f i [RBIRA W R !£~ s \ {. gy D4 )
i

1o .7 ‘1 H | o
A /‘,’r,‘;)’\ AN A S RTINS S heone

M Zu.‘.,w{o (‘«\r—.ﬁ'(‘ NN n‘ \.-’\\»§ LS % (-8

e ' NS,
eble b [’\.&J‘K‘fw:’.\cfk ;{sxa{l/ ‘r\wr\\ﬁ\fkﬁ\ NS R

ov Uuz M l‘\‘a'\c; ] A ‘3c,i(:€x-£.c-&{ gio \/*"“L_,‘ (SR

' ) {\'_:&-\/3
L
,7’ !Tr\;}’.-.u\dl\. OV 7(_‘)&.9.., M,L,Q,\..) Crann (:_ {7}\ Q_'{_‘;Lk,\,i N
hoe. oy 5«{.;.\5; N\o«jﬁok K".}'\.’Ai_ G
5
& f\ w_,x CAA Sy L O 17(- ARy o AL ‘kxf f‘QA"\Jﬂ"-‘:‘éa\‘
) ()1 '\./.Lc/wc; l’\..m%«e, L~Q-2m& ko ":.U"LL\ s JV‘ G M’-"k '
- —t .

S quw:Sdou My -8 pnch r;j I'wwl) o “‘(- ;) W

U
Lomluwl\ a,{: ,{,Lo\ /0 ary CordaeS \n fL’J‘»Q

Page 22



5 o
kRS

1

N R L R S N W " P =]

T\ cz/"'\.:a.er:z ey Aiheds psent reloven
wa-/w:t(\ 2 vk ("Q(i 7(1"\“-1})&:“ ,(;'.,L\_AL { BN
P2V S r’tj" ’\E [”.Q) (ﬂu:‘,ori.,r.\' é', [AJ'M.“Q VWL A g

DAns @D VTN paanl v g % A
.

Ahs S ok he. Aol b bvcos o L.A\rv
3 \J 1
‘{.. ks Lo L HE

|

To }Q..Q,.e,,(’ thos Latbe ba tj , (:} e

}0( efo.sn,kx ves oo haed e S Mn,hlﬁi\j

2ol

e, Aol Covea (A cucthenty nsedds
£o ..S.Q_Q_ +ha thﬂzv\t'\ai__ lea(&,w?g)(w

Lhonmseloey. Those. Ve o '

LN By

ARSI e (*. {;\ o c}\. '{X S !:.,TL"'(JV‘\(Q

Ou\p\_@.J ck L.)(JZ_ MA’\D‘MA«,{B o bR u.,\‘\u\

g@f\ RPN RN k

)f\g}g t(:j ﬁactd.ol.fé/\-\bl %4 {OQJ\_'ZN{—\}\ Gy D"’\A\

WAG Q:rv\wéé I cr‘:_\? and . ot
l\N@ S 7{;\@1 c w«dﬁ fm [’ MQA
bik thoe o reddend 1 ko,

Page 23



{esaededh o bk bk ‘f)\m’:' AL _{”‘Q.n‘.a»fr'f’...
i

4

Aev’ LV angrae 'YJ pa b i Ot b, (e
. «

N

o g ) B o
b, AL {z LAl cu«)\ Sow kol if..uc--‘:)(wﬂ,m
¢ gy ) LBC;-\».E :\Q?L.S .

\ e L.

\'l Gl S ,,.J C)u\:i;?’-i‘“?_\,,,s. »\U\k\

Page 24



Breresick, Sapaare,
TORGMAY,

2 3 KOV 2015 a1 e« T,

0. .15,
Do ﬁ;r;)

Afer  sdbecdiia t# - Tere Commoncniby
Pabenlyp  mubdy lok Wedisday T realise
et iF i1 G ke Lok b qebte Gt b
.ch,; U mend  abek e Kot of Teafhic

Wk&q - {-uuh;ﬂ ~T""-ﬂ/-—'—7 Tewrl

M'—'ﬁ’ 55‘9““ S WIQ_ l*sg_ lo Mr.l-u..‘)woL

hao (L Lezaqsds M F‘(Ah‘_}\,l byiSe + [k O'F

’Mﬂmkl « Hat Sy K we  Sledl be 3 °$'
} A . )

He wal u_c.l-_-, iy .

Bk 9 lie soe  sewios  cfsen
+ Hay  sae wqqc-\ﬁhu- Vias-

o
‘ ' o ‘ h lehky we wp
hIOK@mk#M“‘&NS}"\

bt ot sl of Aacveick Spde

wloae Ha taomber 14 Lo shep s L be placedd
Wil b least forfold e '~ bafle b oo

Page 25



T M%w%w“u.m_uu“
W e aleedy  degerms, openitty k
Cans, + s¢u_,__;‘.._ il ke kailkd 5 g Ads et
T S S e
shp. TE Haewe D3 ko Mley  tailedt Fo— A

Profor  pdiac tresiq oK b QU 0 cadl we

b lawe b leant a =ebi MH::’ e o

v be Suu.g_. o 5“‘1‘7""‘"’ a.) GL_ MW L.v-‘-ﬁ p-ﬁ-\u-o(
. - Su,g. A Tew'e c&ov- Pc—rk ks "“"F“"’“
Wiy Cat,  + b) A otz Sy g t Cancealed Enbrunce

Somimbie thar  yeor prropeed Lrul«ﬁﬁﬁ
| 9&onf-o—r._,$crﬂ—$«h.e}“-!°'-&
Slop hepary, Mot cbe #h Gl ke & exbicy
20 munndks fre car  pughe wuay b Tovre G b,
e b arde #e el Mt My wid allecale
so;.,ruw,uu.._s i liew

¥ persetly, thikh Hek 4 Tewe Thdes
b mhgulidid e Wbl pastcly I;ﬁ‘mu

sl wl tetreanddl  Frde. p«,mq‘ Cars  wndl, 5-‘-4.
g by o~ o bty v quig L b ot a ks
b see  seeMilg g like. ﬂ*—‘i‘-d’hl-i-’ Tre o
fant- bc—erk‘_ﬁ ¥ o sl iF “hed lo he. Ts

Ll e icerandy bk of waph,  slaps

Page 26



CEES e M—gdiﬁ punct Tk, < any
bl - Tonwrts o gerersdly,

Y perseatt; A devarkdzd Ut 9 stall e
fﬂthkQ%hU‘%wsws at
fp of 4o lwn  bitecie Bw cat ke o mmker 12
by back fw CaMe CGwes. Steqe. Gnel s qeig
Lo lese a I of mee 1 By Shep 1 ey
popator, nob by wibt ofd folk ok any § hodenks
sclel clillfie. =+ “efaes wobl plams + pusletares
wle we s thp., A Friewl Las  segqatEl 9
Mkﬂ;«,u&..h.bn..—, as Mx iy &Y e
e bu Fep. § caned geb i b becaa o}
my dis abilibls b A e b At s ey
bbpfol i lieriy Heir mop fo etehle prol dike
me b gk a4 B K busa.

Yoors  Ferk St

s e
) H-\."Lu-uzs Metaquine W, Terke Coacil

> Mo, M :D...,t._q,’
) e Uoretd = Ex press

Page 27



Brunswick Square

Torquay

TQ1 4UT

23" November 2015
Highways Management
Community and Customer Service RECE‘VED
Torbay Council
Town Hall
Castle Circus 7 5 NOV 201
Torquay

FIGHWAYS &

HEDR STHEET SERVICES
Dear Sir/ Madam

Re Traffice Reversal in Torre

1 am writing to express my concerns and objections to the proposed plan to reverse traffice flow in
Torre . T have attended all the consultation events and at each meeting various issue and objections
have been raised to no avail.

Attached please find a list of my objection and some suggestions that may address some of the
issues raised,

Yours sincerely

Page 28



Objections on the following grounds

1 Single lane road outside HomePalms House unsuitable for proposed volume of traffic i.e. traffic

will be held up by any legal parked vehicles e.g. Blue badges/carers/ambulances/Doctors/Fire
engines/ dustmen etc.

2 Pinch point at top and bottom of Trematon Avenue
3 Junction of Tor Hill Road/ Tor Church Road and Abbey Road will be a pressure point.
4 Morgan Avenue will become a rat run like Salisbury Avenue was.

5 Access and exiting HomePalms House is already difficult this will make it dangerous.

6 Parking spaces in Torre will be reduced due to bus stops

7 Government policy requires councils to reduce carbon emissions in town centres this will increase
them

8 The Government targets are to regenerate town centres not to increase volume of traffic — there
are alternatives i.e. Park and Ride schemes

9 Lack of adequate town centre parking to cater for increased traffic

10 Conflict of interest between regenerating town centre and regenerating Torre shops — the two
require different strategies.

11 Re routing number 12 bus to go straight up Tor Hill Road and avoid Castle Circus will mean
many elderly and disabled people will be unable to access top of town centre resulting in loss of
revenue to top of town and bus company.

12 Proposed route is not most direct route to town centre if this is objective — the most direct route
would be past Torre shops and straight down to Castle Circus.

13 Proposed loading bay/ lay by in Upton Road serves no practical purpose and will not alleviate
the problems of vehicles parking on a single lane track.

14 Scheme creates a roundabout at Town Hall block

15 Traffic count being used to determine numbers was only in situ for one day in the middle of

winter this does not provide suitable evidence on which to base this major decision to reverse the
flow of traffic.

16 If 'Carers' have to use paying car parks for each visit the cost of providing social care will
increase as they will claim this from the agencies who in turn will pass it on to Torbay Council.

17 The cost of this project at a time when Torbay Council is cutting services to make savings

Suggestions

1 Pedestrian controlled lights at junction outside Home Palms House

2 Caution — concealed entrance sign on approach road to same junction

3 Weight restriction on vehicles re: Torre

4 Site visit to view single track road and access problems at junction outside Homepalms House.
5 Mirror to assist vehicles exiting Homepalms car park.

6 Traffic coming down Union St to be given priority not traffic coming up Union Street.

7 Scrap the project and use funds to save some of the proposed service cuts.

Page 29



RECEIVED

75 NOV 20

IGHWAYS &
TREET SERVICES

23rd Nov.2015

Brunswick Square
Torquay, TQI 4UT

Dear Sirs,
Traffic Reversal into Torre

Please find enclosed a list of objections to the above scheme. 1 have also enclosed a quick diagram of obvious
routes.

The main idea of the traffic reversal,as | understand is to provide a straight route to Castle Circus and the
town.You can see from the sketch that around Home Palms House is definetley not the easiest way. [ will cause
all sorts of problems not to mention health and safety , fumes, excessive traffic from umpteen bus routes.
Bearing in mind that Teignmouth road at HomePalm House is a narrow . The junction will be a dangerous
space. No pedestrian crossing or mirror has been mentioned. residents are 75-95 years old, they cannot
hurry accross the road, dodging the traffic and busses.

If the route in question was to travel up South Street, along to Central Church, down to Castle Circus and up
Union Street to Torre, THERE WOULD BE NO NEED FORA REVERSAL The buses would travel this route
or continue down teLyminton Rd. Surely the cost of unnecessary work be taken in consideration. | do not think
that this scheme has been thought through enough.

Myself and many residents have attended every meeting by the council. Each time we were put
off. No money, further consultation, visits - All never happened | have to consider this a done
deal, although [ am told differently. I only hope that you can look into this reversal again and answer our 17

queries anad check our suggestions.

Yours sincerely

Page 30



Fuiery = g
S .uﬁtﬂtg QLo LS Qi Nasd o [T 3
A e e
1
M..
o] «
NN L
L B )
. % \-
. [ l
AT ! o
3
“ % o
- z
1~ =
A I
\\\
‘..|.|I.ln")||.|..)\\\|
= \n.r.
£
\V\
- ~
LT *
o N e
3l =
_ —
1
~
P \ _
|||Il|.|.-|h..T.an\ B tme e -
(..f.r:.. G e Fiah S
et 5e Sy
i 5
| N
|
_ 5
L' i
3] =
[}
<[ e
b
R
‘ avmnv \\\/; r
'S - ~. X e
AN \ %
7 .//V/ .h\.aVi,\.L T
L N e 4y
o ! e =
- 9 “E 508y, |
Y ., =-$
%
3. = -
[
" 4
) ¢

,

MYy

Page 31



Suggested Objections

1 Single land road cutside HomePalms House unsuitable for proposed volume of traffic i.e. traffic
will be held up by any legal parked vehicles e.g. Blue badges/carers/ambulances/Doctors/Fire
engines/ dustmen etc.

2 Pinch point at top and bottom of Trematon Avenue

3 Junction of Tor Hill Road/ Tor Church Road and Abbey Road will be a pressure point.
4 Morgan Avenue will become a rat run like Salisbury Avenue was.

5 Access and exiting HomePalms House is already difficult this will make it dangerous.
6 Parking spaces in Torre will be reduced due to bus stops

7 Government policy requires councils to reduce carbon emissions in town centres this will increase
them

8 The Government targets are to regenerate town centres not to increase volume of traffic - there
are alternatives i.e. Park and Ride schemes

9 Lack of adequate town centre parking to cater for increased traffic

10 Conflict of interest between regenerating town centre and regenerating Torre shops — the two
require different strategies.

11 Re routing number 12 bus to go straight up Tor Hill Road and avoid Castle Circus will mean
many elderly and disabled people will be unable to access top of town centre resulting in loss of
revenue to top of town and bus company.

12 Proposed route is not most direct route to town centre if this is objective — the most direct route
would be past Torre shops and straight down to Castle Circus.

13 Proposed loading bay/ lay by in Upton Road serves no practical purpose and will not alleviate
the problems of vehicles parking on a single lane track.

14 Scheme creates a roundabout at Town Hall block

15 Traffic count being used to determine numbers was only in situ for one day in the middle of
winter this does not provide suitable evidence on which to base this major decision to reverse the
flow of traffic.

16 If 'Carers' have to use paying car parks for each visit the cost of providing social care will
increase as they will claim this ffom the agencies who in turn will pass it on to Torbay Council.

17 The cost of this project at a time when Torbay Council is cutting services to make savings

Suggestions

1 Pedestrian controlled lights at junction outside Home Palms House

2 Caution — concealed entrance sign on approach road to same junction

3 Weight restriction on vehicles re: Torre

4 Site visit to view single track road and access problems at junction outside Homepalms House.
5 Mirror to assist vehicles exiting Homepalms car park.

6 Traffic coming down Union St to be given priority not traffic coming up Union Street.

7 Scrap the project and use funds to save some of the proposed service cuts.

Page 32



To Whou b Al Lo Ll

JU:#;;LM a,C/uu/uuw,b wllﬂ:’ w&gfw g&(;’&%tédl : { !, bl
bt add, W ot . o L
vl 1 oy ) 1 T ol Fulh s thanpe wtenfpii
d e A ‘cw«e?&,b e T7a doss LM,@W?‘ Toss o k

/

W,Feafez - S ;
s leabs pa )

r/.
Kewton Ol

o
CL-WO'?”W)D '} “"«@2 ale. Q,eaw‘l’,‘b haie Qa,bg,/

o , W lae st 4 ¥ "
e i e g e s
O (v% wo‘é\::\,g,dj R——Q—&Ldﬁ,\,«b Q’t/

e

Page 33



— . r
lo wlou, L M% Coucecn
Suggested Objections

1 Single land road outside HomePalms House unsuitable for proposed volume of traffic i.e. traffic

will be held up by any legal parked vehicles e.g. Blue badges/carers/ambulances/Doctors/Fire
engines/ dustmen etc.

2 Pinch point at top and bottom of Trematon Avenue
3 Junction of Tor Hill Road/ Tor Church Road and Abbey Road will be a pressure point.
4 Morgan Avenue will become a rat run like Salishury Avenue was.

5 Access and exiting HomePalms House is already difficult this will make it dangerous.

6 Parking spaces in Torre will be reduced due to bus stops

7 Government policy requires councils to reduce carbon emissions in town centres this will increase
them

8 The Government targets are to regenerate town centres not to increase volume of traffic - there
are alternatives i.e. Park and Ride schemes

9 Lack of adequate town centre parking to cater for increased traffic

10 Conflict of interest between regenerating town centre and regenerating Torre shops — the two
require different strategies.

11 Re routing number 12 bus to go straight up Tor Hill Road and avoid Castle Circus will mean
many elderly and disabled people will be unable to access top of town centre resulting in loss of
revenue to top of town and bus company.

12 Proposed route is not most direct route to town centre if this is objective — the most direct route
would be past Torre shops and straight down to Castle Circus.

13 Proposed loading bay/ lay by in Upton Road serves no practical purpose and will not alleviate
the problems of vehicles parking on a single lane track.

14 Scheme creates a roundabout at Town Hall block

15 Traffic count being used to determine numbers was only in situ for one day in the middle of

winter this does not provide suitable evidence on which to base this major decision to reverse the
flow of traffic.

16 If 'Carers' have to use paying car parks for each visit the cost of providing social care will
increase as they will claim this from the agencies who in turn will pass it on to Torbay Council.

17 The cost of this project at a time when Torbay Council is cutting services to make savings

Suggestions

1 Pedestrian controlled lights at junction outside Home Palms House

2 Caution — concealed entrance sign on approach road to same Jjunction

3 Weight restriction on vehicles re: Torre

4 Site visit to view single track road and access problems at junction outside Homepalms House.

5 Mirror to assist vehicles exiting Homepalms car park.

6 Traffic coming down Union St to be given priority not traffic coming up Union Street. |
7 Scrap the project and use funds to save some of the proposed service cuts. ./ L} 05T PVM.

—r

P70

Page 34



Q@_' ﬂwg::o M\)e/‘s@é -,E/y,_,o e~ TCDPFQ
~ 2 DEC 2015

T d U ‘ '
oOcou,l L»L{(’, TC) voice m 8@€c+ao/1§ +'o ‘H’\e S'C]I\QVY\G’ bOS(’Ot gy

Heoﬁe\ o+ Sa/f’e gues  crreuvel R e Padms House. Dame\/.j

Tle ’F;rct Tl/\cg,t r‘«FF, c e,\{c N B\RAV\ﬁ‘/JICSK gq/‘mr@ -Pfa)m \\)&D*‘O"\

Nead wil do o at a conccated” enthrorce tothe Cor vk oF Home.
Bl s ﬂ\‘”“j O qenciep W o foeddy on o s ¢ codd Caxs®
féq) Fo‘@b\cﬁxﬁ bO*QI\ €V\7\ffl a leao Car?q\h Eg?go.,a,u,,s |<F fonck
ol E’a\h i Lol § veluc %ou)e”;g) eoere ook into Ho mowf%ieﬂw\
Yo, In adal Fon to Yheee rb(oic Mg -emeen Of'\/\)otés % <
Uehicles have (o Pas\h at ﬂfe readside w*%e o the haghl

restiicton n the aar Papb .
m ‘grﬂoqu‘w\ PALWUN 4b»’\36t699 \”\V@N\P \Vol,bw\% {’\Zoufof IS Jufo
6} 1o Lot~ \esuliont NOSE

Frode & ol of Thin Jeddded Ty
enission fumos & Suchfugt w B be dehiimonted to o lonay

o health of o vo51:Q0ifo ok Womo Fadws Howse.
o, He W’@F@C/

Q(Haﬂ‘low o matko a ¢ eV\OtTOV\W\QV\ﬁ
2 Wnew WPtz Nawiber pak neverthe\css w* Aose 10€

@«Ls'ldofa;p;@f\ =N ﬁuWo&I %W our Coundl « ung: o5 n s

aer
:{{\QF Sop TTaffic = bawo nefvice ke Ton w7 wﬁa@ Iho Cﬂul&ad
— oety BTN Aor s T2 Yot WS como Lot Sthef )

QOM’\:@V\S o3Xhet h‘am%)ope‘ sders Lol Lose w Qosmﬂ‘o 5
/ t’%isa[w'\roﬂ,q ford~am Cauomﬂ ineoaoed Sanard on

ouo patss e €.
X eﬂdoﬁe & ‘F""‘*) dsocum/\em 1) 6&%\'}0«,@,’ ogw_béojeo‘\’)oﬂé -@fDN\
L) &%Wfﬁ. . ) » M
{'gs‘v\co,\«, Vo M/\o-fbﬂ-sz\ Gﬂu“&l w)/u SCPC\P'&,?’ Uc"gmi“ 0{,@
;\00 Deen ] 0 onle LOne Ao not e i~ (Ve & WO ﬂ(n \
Yo T@[erafé bdm:géu %E;wg"’a e C;\a.u, /(o\cwls a ujep,k, Nhe w déﬂ
Sitaa ieon \s mioleredlble & I\ Conce ped © eoPkg_ Oho are o
cren 6N Q/\;eo\??w/bbo yooke ,%/ The CX\QQE i

Page 35
7.5 Plees® aees

-~



PAGE 2 - Tuesday, September 15, 2015
KVH Media Group | NEWSlink (Sources: PA,

Diesel vehicles may face city
centre restrictions

Drivers of diesel vehicles could face
restrictions on going into city centres
under Government proposals to
improve air quality.

The move would affect six cities
in areas where air quality targets for
2020 are expected to be missed.

They are London, Birmingham,
Leeds, Nottingham, Derby and
Southampton.

The consultation document,
launched by the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs,
states that local authorities in these
cities should "consider the role of
access restrictions for certain types of
vehicles" to reduce nitrogen dioxide
emissions.

Page 36



EU Court rules UK government must act to clean up deadly air

pollution
London | 19 November 2014

ClientEarth win on all points
UK plans should have aimed at compliance by 1 January 2015 at the latest

UK courts must order the government to produce a plan which achieves nitrogen dioxide limits “as soon
as possible”

The European Court of Justice (ECJ) has delivered its judgment in ClientEarth’s case and firmly upheld
our right to breathe clean air. The ECJ has ruled that the UK must act to clean up illegal levels of air
pollution "as soon as possible". Under current plans the UK will not meet legal limits for nitrogen dioxide
until after 2030 - 20 years after the original deadline.

Around 29,000 people die early in the UK each year as a result of air pollution, making it the biggest
public health problem after smoking.

s ClientEarth’s case will return to the UK Supreme Court for a final ruling next year. This should see the
UK Supreme Court ordering the government to take action to meet limits in a much shorter timeframe.
This plan would need to drastically cut pollution from diesel vehicles and could lead to policies like the
London Mayor's plans for an "ultra low emission zone" being rolled out nationally.

Alan Andrews, ClientEarth lawyer, said: “This ruling is a big victory for the millions of pecple who want
to live healthy lives in the UK's towns and cities. This will force the government to finally take this issue
seriously and come up with an urgent plan to- rid our towns and cities of cancer-causing diesel fumes.

“This sets a groundbreaking legal precedent in EU law and paves the way for a series of legal challenges
across Europe. ClientEarth will spearhead these efforts to help people defend their right to clean air in
court.”

Diesel fumes are the main source of nitrogen dioxide (NO2) - a harmful gas linked with heart attacks
and asthma. The ECJ's landmark ruling is the first ever on the 2008 Air Quality Directive.

ENDS | I

o
-

L
Media contact:

George Leigh, ClientEarth communications officer: t. +44 (0)203 030 5951

Page 37



Page 38 .



PRINCECHARLESsayshis""".’__
children ~ Prince George™ and
Princess Charlotte have inspired
him to become even more of an.

€co-warrior. .

The future king: said becoming
a grandfather hag pushed him to
want to do more to protect the
environment, L

miﬁeﬁandﬂﬁts_‘dﬁothéi-ipeopj ple
‘said. 3!

"ﬂ‘ue (5 a
,}thn)c‘ rag 2
T"a,LLw\ M
the romnde
O-F g \Ql e
Homo Padms
tovse. ‘

£ Ao ﬂthlc !
wversal shomo
ﬂ&es a)\oao‘
ﬂy\:?)pew 1T houws o A

Atotal of 0B buses cha\j (Vs EZ>

Page 39



a r B, i
RS, oemethiad’ L LI

1IVING nex? to a busy road with high
avels of iraffic noise could raise the

6 OverT5s.
ore people died in

¢ traffic noise was

Page 40



(\f_&w'rm\ R szd
~To RQURY
TU27 TK

D“Q%%Om
O\V“’\é’\ru;\(ég doe  Aw stolp ok
Coplle Tufons U3 Loy Luat Cdea
Jo- wz b M* odrc %%
b Comkle Corews Wl anvoboe @
Lovng wath o pecally Jor
Ainallad fprokle , Wp ~ Sowr
Pleane wrmy oy cumel. T
L i
Jo Aedlendy

0L
G102 330 € -
EMINN
HONNCD / f RECEIVED
-3 DEC 205
TORBAY COUNCIL
POST ROOM

Page 41 _



ﬂ;hways

From:

Sent: 03 December 2015 10:30

To: Transportation; Excell, Robert; info@friendsofuptonpark.org.uk; Mayor; King, Mark;
mandy.darling@torbay.gon.uk; Highways; Lang, Andy

Subject: traffic reversal at Torre

I would like to voice my objections to the above scheme based on Health and Safety issues around Home
Palms House.

Namely the fact that traffic entering Brunswick Square from Newton Road will do so at a concealed
entrance to the Car Park

of Home Palms. Many agencies use this facility on a daily basis, e. g. doctors, paramedics, carers, taxi
drivers, visitors/residents.

This could cause real problems both upon entering and leaving the car park, especially if the facility is full
resulting in vehicles

reversing out into the main stream of traffic as there is no room to turn round once inside. Additionally
emergency and refuse

vehicles have to park on the road outside because of the height restrictions in the car park.

The footpath running alongside Home Palms i no more than 3 feet wide and all of this traffic with the
resultant noise, -

fumes emissions and dirt/dust will be detrimental to the long term health of the residents at Home Palms.

When Home Palms was built 30 years ago, the traffic flow was diverted to its present course to ease the
situation and make a

safer environment for the residents all of whole are elderly/over 55 years of age.

I know that wee are few in numberr but nevertheless we deserve consideration and support from our
Council and
Councillors in this matter.

If the bus service is rerouted and I urge the council in strong terms to reject this and come up with other
solutions, one of which

I have indicated in a previous e-mail. If the service iis re-routed we will have app 130 buses a day passing
within 3 feet of our
lounge and bedroom windows, that is for 18 hours a day, seven days a week.

The whole scheme is intolerable and ill conceived by people who are not even on the electoral role for the
area.

I sinserely hope that you will re-consider and come up with an alternative solution.

Page'42



Highways

From: . f

Sent: 03 December 2015 10:05

To: Mayor; King, Mark; mandy.darling@torbay.gon.uk; Lang, Andy; Excell, Robert; Highways;
Transportation

Subject: traffic reversal at Torre

Dear Mayor and Councillors,

Part of my objections to the above scheme are the amount of traffic that will be generated, including a topic
which was

raised at the last meeting at the Torre and Upton Community Partnership, that is that HGV's and Artics will
be able to use

Brunswick Square, as I don't think you can put a weight restriction on if buses are using it.

My understanding on the reason for the reversal is to showcase the shops on the parade at Torre. Passengers
on the buses

will not be able to see the shops on the other side of the square because the road is lower than the parade,
the foliage

hiding the vieww to the shops. If the buses pass along the parade passengers will get a full view of the shops
there.

[ would like to suggest that the buses are directed straight across to the parade in front of the shops, buses
only. This will

not be a problem because motor vehicles are using this stretch already. The buses would have right of way
at the top with

a bus stop outside the barbers and a loading bay for delivery vehicles. Cars and light vans could then use
the route as

suggested by the council enabling a weight restriction for HGV's and ARtics who will still have to use the
Teignmouth Road
and Lymington Road route.

These are just suggestions, which will ease the traffic on Brunswick Square and I am sure could be done.

Yours sincerely

Page 43



INCOMING EMAIL

From:

To: Highways <EX:/O=1URBAY COUNCIL/OU=Civic Offices
Server/cn=Environment/cn=Highways/cn=Highways.>

Date: 05/12/2015 16:16:05

Subject: Revoke of Right turn Tor Hill Road

With regard to the revoking of the right turn into Tor Hill Road.

We live on Tor Hill Road » which is already a busy junction
and the thing which concerns us is the fact that the buses and lorries will have to use
this road from now on.

What I want to know is how will this effect the existing parking, cycle lanes etc. I
have been informed that a bus stop might be sited outside which would
be unsuitable as it stands.

Please can you let me know if there are any plans to change the parking etc. as part of
this proposal?

regards i
Tor Hill Road,

Torquay

TQ2 5RT

Page 44



. Moy o
J\ﬁmbé& D Q\w
\M\M%K A\_ﬁim J\‘% g&y % @ é
\é_ > Xy

hmhasg
5402 23g g _

ﬁ.\\CQN, Ju_//\q zw,a,

Page 45



Knights Croft
New Ash Green

Longfield - 8 DEC 2915

Kent DA3 8HZ

Residents & Visitors Services
Highways Management
Torbay Council

Town Hall

Castle Circus

Torquay

TQl 3DR

7" December 2015

Dear Sir/Madam
RE: TOR HILL ROAD TRAFFIC PROPOSAL

| have recently purchased Tor Hill Road, Torquay TQ2 5RT and am dismayed to
have discovered that you propose to make Tor Hill Road the main exit route North-bound out of
Torquay.

This makes no sense at all. Tor Hill Road is primarily residential and therefore has a requirement for
residents to reverse or drive out of their driveways, which will be impossible into a fast flow of
traffic. The traffic already speeds up this road.

The residents at Lauriston Close will have big problems with this being a main exit route. Central
Church attendees use the area near my cottage to park on a Sunday and | myself have no parking
amenity with this cottage and it is difficult enough for anyone living here with the 1 hour parking bay
outside let alone if these were removed to accommodate all the additional traffic. If a bus stop is
put in it will result in additional litter and everything that entails. The road will be filthy.

The quality of residents lives here will be degraded with excessive pollution from diesel (and petrol)
fumes as it can be ascertained that, owing the road layout at the top of the road, the traffic will end
up backing up down this road, engines running, and that will be coaches, lorries, buses and cars. |
understand that the buses start at 5.20am and the noise from this alone will be unbearable,
notwithstanding the vibration. At the height of summer this will be untenable.

The pollution will mean additional cost regarding the upkeep of my cottage as it is painted white.
This in turn will have a negative effect on the value of my property and of everyone else’s. Had |
known this was going to happen | would not have bought | bought this cottage as it
is in a relatively quiet area, close to town.

Page 46

/7o - ..



Union Street shopkeepers will find this change does not result in more footfall for them. | have seen
the same kind of thing happen in suburbs of London.

I am therefore protesting in the strongest possible terms and suggest that you have a proper traffic
survey undertaken in order to establish that this proposal will not stand up.

I would also like to know why has this not been a higher profile announcement, thus giving residents
the opportunity to have a proper say in this? | have had nothing through the door.

Yours faithfully

Page 47



“Tor M KA -
Roedenk

Fro Pcsdcl dtangg/; te Ura —\/0(1\.\ gjn\fem MO\_
A J (@) U

:Dw‘__ S.‘r Mw)\am ~§ DEC 2015

M - 16 st o B Lol Lo Vor Hu R4
it g (T8 L A
V‘Emjg{c, oul TTorquea .. w\'«\i o obpct to yowr roposols
Qfon W &Eﬁw’w\j .‘.\:‘:wiﬁ : ¥ 3 T
dnevcased” fast - foding Trdhe fom veep 2ol
W\m MOTnune @.st No \gz:i&i&agos'zo o\é:-, % kaszsa )On?rﬁfecowf\@
Alse He X4l Exobar and otters mbwmated - The egha nolsa  cond
pollukion of Lumes dust gt oo wll be condidaratole . Flso extre
meiVzinance co sk‘s e mere regudar exleier an.\ﬂmj <£ m@wa(u:oﬂﬂzbc
Ras'dots wieolszady Bedbg b ol o evarie our
oéz Hir Pmrtha$ into *B‘Lt',',‘%w déf) Codl besome aren moe IS .
Some hav fe come ouk @Q "blind drivewada such as LawidenClese | some
o W;GV‘CCLi3Q‘_mS and Wu(j amations gﬁk‘ams‘azci QQ}Oéu}ng "Pr-o‘x—v\f&
davallaalion wdll erelil§ occur and some are am&aaj consiinnsy
with re_cc)‘ud fo com‘ae.nso:l:u&w-
The resull wll be conmdarelate davcdarny o the queliry of-
Yfe 38&;\(1%\/& @ﬂ/ﬁrﬁzu Rd | widh Yhe possibdiby f o [ wxdrm cutomars ab
b\noFs on Oﬂoﬁon}on Shieel 3 P@Fln che wdll ,Q;{ Rz Hran Sm.gs.&m e
Ol.z‘s‘tm;d»‘ov'\ ’/':ny.a. fown canloe ﬂa@omt wdl e \,\hﬂ.\,\(@\\j o sh:rgop o
Todet break fas is ho !{j a s\rwf\c‘zp_’;pr]: Sfok: oy mw«\r\\j) e d{,jgr“‘)-tu‘,w

CLU'\A, a r(wu)rbn ovay |'W\ QZ—A TO%S A_Q_LFCKAW\ 0 T\" \ LL.:L wﬂ Cau.s&lf,si?n'bvnznt
Jfar «/Ju w_@;(jlmkj the sf:c\u uu?;]pm en dguw\\gﬂw‘ﬁ __jgo::;jx -87"3'5‘05""‘/“{5”!“-

Page 48



AN 2> 4
i . .
N S le ‘b"\"& ] P > RJ [ g
[ —_ g/‘" > € "\\ Mo
————— —_——
\ Cu \ Q\ v~ <.
RN <> ‘]-:-)\_,_ g—':)-t \
o) ~ .
™ o :
v *' \t\ 2 SC\-@ AN (TS € €vL a \O\ATQ
o -, Vs < < o .
s Q s\\(‘\g_j' T N e~'T sV
—
vn\'\-((_»:,gg‘\j [ e\ N
» N

Page 49



Hopkinson, Shirley

From: Transportation

Sent: 09 December 2015 17:53

To: Highways

Subject: FW: REVERSAL OF TRAFFIC FLOW

From:

Sent: 08 December 2015 09:58
To: Transportation

Cc:

Subject: REVERSAL OF TRAFFIC FLOW

Dear Transport

We ask what is the point of increasing traffic into the town centre where is it going
Abbey Road. Traffic did not increase trade just look around other Towns and Cities.The
government has advised councils to reduce traffic into Town centres not increase did
Torbay council not get the message regards !

Page 50



Hopkinson, Shirley

From: Transportation

Sent: 09 December 2015 17:53

To: Highways

Subject: FW: REVERSAL OF TRAFFIC FLOW

From:

Sent: 08 December 2015 20:41
To: Transportation;

Cc:

Subject: Re: REVERSAL OF TRAFFIC FLOW

Hello, There is now much concern regarding lung disease from diesel fumes in railways and
factories from the past. Traffic from the police station tailbacks to the Central Church
in summer, summer not the peak weeks. Residents will now be lumbered with filthy grime
windows and discoloured sandtex. So much for government preaching about environment
issues. Also in Torre very narrow pavements. You will be changing the system again as the
population increases. Pavements in Union Street are now too narrow for footfall. Like
Cumbria flood defences this will be another missjudgement. Thanks,

On Tue, 8/12/15, wrote:

Subject: REVERSAL OF TRAFFIC FLOW
To: transnnrtatinn@tarbayv.gov.uk
Cc:

-———

Date: Tuesday, 8 December, 2015, 9:57

Dear Transport

We ask what is the point of increasing traffic into the town centre where is it going
Abbey Road. Traffic did not increase trade just look around other Towns and Cities.The
government has advised councils to reduce traffic into Town centres not increase did
Torbay council not get the message regards

Page 51



Hopkinson, Shirley

From; Transportation

Sent: 09 December 2015 17:53

To: Highways

Subject: FW: REVERSAL OF TRAFFIC FLOW

From:

Sent: 09 December 2015 12:19
To: Tran<nortation:

Cc:

Subject: RE: REVERSAL OF TRAFFIC FLOW

Subject: Reversal of Traffic
Dear Sirs/Madams,

I am writing you regarding the new Road Traffic regulation proposal in Torre. I would like
to object this proposal.

In my opinion, this plan wasn’t thought out enough. Sometimes you need just a bit of
common sense and not particularly to be a civil engineer to notice that major alternations
must be done for buses, lorries and other HGV with consequences for the area: pollution,
noise, lack of privacy.

Torre is already deprived area. For some reason the most of the problematic people in the
town leave here. What will captivate the people arriving in Torquay via Torre? Dealing on
the street, strange people stalking, roving and lots of privet houses. Even the new bus
stop is near by South Devon Community Drug and Alcohol Service Shrublands House. Who we
would like to accommodate with the new road traffic layout? Perhaps the local businesses?

We did our research and it is a fact that 90% of the local businesses we spoke to don’t
believe that the traffic reversal will change their business.

They think that because “Torre is not a browsing area.”, “.we don’t have Debenhams and
Hoopers”. “In the past, Torre was a very vibrant area because there ware a butcher,
chemist, baker, fruit and veg shop”.

On your plan, there even no signage “Local shops” to promote thenm.
So why you want to spend such an amount of public money for something that most probably
want work. What is the fundamental change that will make this plan work this time?

As a taxpayer I would like to have answers. I love my area and I would like to see it
prosperous, successful. I have no doubt that the Council think and would like to do his

best as well. I wish Residents, Business and Council can communicate and go in one
direction.

Sincerely yours,
Torquay

De : . .
Envoyé : mardi 8 décembre 2015 21:41
A : transportation@torbay.gov.uk;

Re: REVERSAL OF TRAFFIC FLOW

Page 52



Hello, There is now much concern regarding lung disease from diesel fumes in railways and
factories from the past. Traffic from the police station tailbacks to the Central Church
in summer, summer not the peak weeks.

Residents will now be lumbered with filthy grime windows and discoloured sandtex. So much
for government preaching about environment issues. Also in Torre very narrow pavements.
You will be changing the system again as the population increases. Pavements in Union
Street are now too narrow for footfall. Like Cumbria flood defences this will be another
missjudgement.

Thanks,

On Tue, 8/12/15, ' N

Subject: REVERSAL OF TRAFFIC FLOW
To: transportation@torbav.eov.uk
Cc: " e

Date: Tuesday, 8 December, 2015, 9:57

Dear Transport

We ask what is the point of increasing traffic into the town centre where is it going
Abbey Road. Traffic did not increase trade just look around other Towns and Cities.The
government has advised councils to reduce traffic into Town centres not increase did
Torbay council not get the message regards

Page 53



Hopkinson, Shirley

From: Transportation

Sent: 09 December 2015 17:55
To: Highways

Subject: FW: Torre traffic reversal

FY! — We have responded to this enquiry, as it was more directly related to the service 12. However John C has asked
for this to be logged so that we take it into account of the total correspondence received

Regards,

David Whiteway

Team Leader - Future Planning & Transport
Torbay Council

2nd Floor Electric House

Castle Circus

Torquay

TQ13DR

Office: 01803 208828

Mobile: 07920 247651
david.whiteway@torbay.gov.uk
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/index/transportandstreets.htm

This email and any attachments are intended solely for the use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential information and/ar may be legally privileged. If
you have received this email in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete this email

From:

Sent: 05 December 2015 17:22
To: Transportation

Subject: Torre traffic reversal

My main objection is that the outward number 12 bus service does not call at
Castle Circus , it has been suggested that this could do a loop around the Town
Hall but this will only add to the journey time and increase pollution and congestion .

[ think the whole scheme is a waste of money , it is being justified in order to boost
the trade of the Torre shops , shopping areas on the edge of town centres in most
towns are in decline , this is due to competition from out of town shopping centres
and the internet ,the only solution is to allow the properties to be converted into residental use .

Page 54



TORRE AND UPTON

‘,,'

el

communifypartnershi,o

we don’t just talk - we do!

Response to:
BOROUGH OF TORBAY (UNION STREET) (ONE WAY) ORDER 2015

The above Order was discussed by a public meeting of the Community Partnership held on 18"
November 2015. This document records the recommendations of that meeting and a summary of
the discussion held. This forms the formal response by the Torre & Upton Community Partnership
to the Order.

BACKGROUND:

The Partnership has held two Public Meetings (21st October 2015 and 18th November 2015) at
which the primary topic has been the reversal of traffic flow through Torre. This has been in
response to public concerns about some aspects of the scheme, and the need for information about
progress; timescales and actions taken in response to previous concerns.

The Mayor; Tormohun Ward Councillors; a Stagecoach representative and Highways officers were
invited to the November meeting in order to provide a complete, up-to-date and accurate statement
about the scheme and respond to public questions. Alas, neither the Mayor nor Highways officers
could attend due to other commitments. Cllrs. Lang and Excell were advised by Council
Governance Support not to attend due to potential conflict of interest, as both own business in the
area. The absence of Highways Officers also underpinned this decision. The Deputy Mayor, Clir
Derek Mills, attended on behalf of the Mayor. Ward Councillor, Mandy Darling, attended. Mr
Graham Bailey represented Stagecoach Ltd. As no Highways Officers could attend, the Partnership
Chair, Mrs Susie Colley, was given a briefing by officers ahead of the meeting and provided with
display materials.

The meeting co-incided with the publication of the Notice of Proposals for Union Street and Tor
Hill Road. So, it was decided that the outcome of the meeting would form the Partnership's formal
response to these Notices.

Please note that in January 2015 the Partnership submitted the following statement in response to
the original public consultation:

“The majority of members of the Torre and Upton CP welcome the reversal of the traffic flow
through Torre. However, it was felt that there was insufficient detail provided for the group to
decide whether the route should continue straight ahead, or follow Trematon Avenue, round past
the library. The main concern for the direct route was the fact the majority of traffic coming into
Torquay town centre flows down Tor Hill Road, and this could lead to serious traffic jams and/or a
confusion of traffic lights by the town hall.”

Page 55



TORRE AND UPTON

communiiypartnership

we don’t just talk - we do!

The Partnership still recognises the potential benefits of the scheme but has identified a number of
aspects that we believe need to be considered and addressed by the Transport Working Party, if the
scheme is to be a success.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

a)That all members of the Transport Working Party make a publicised site visit to Brunswick
Square and Morgan Avenue prior to it's meeting on 17™ December, in order to be fully aware of the
implications of the Order on local residents, businesses, pedestrians and road users.

b)That the Transport Working Party questions the robustness of vehicle monitoring results which
appear to be based on very limited timeframes and seasonal traffic volumes.

¢)That a weight limit be imposed on traffic travelling through Brunswick Square , along Union
Street to the junction with Trematon Avenue, in order to exclude Heavy Good Vehicles(HGVs), but
permit public transport vehicles.

d)That the proposed “cut-away” in the existing inner-lane on Upton Road, running alongside Home
Palms House, be designated a “Loading Bay” (on the assumption that Emergency Vehicles may use
this if the need arises).

€)That the proposed priority at the junction of Union Street with Trematon Avenue be changed so
that vehicles travelling from Brunswick Square have priority, turning into Trematon Avenue, over
those travelling from Castle Circus.

f)A “No Right Turn” from Tor Hill Road into Morgan Avenue should be introduced, in order to
prevent Morgan Avenue being used as a short cut for vehicles seeking to avoid the junction at
Central Church.

g)That the Transport Working Party ascertains if there will be a net loss or gain of parking spaces
along Union Street if the scheme proceeds, and takes steps to minimise any loss.

h)That further consultation, based upon robust and transparent information, is undertaken to
establish the impact on bus passengers in terms of fares; bus stops; routes and services.

OTHER POINTS OF DISCUSSION/CONCERN:

a)Residents of Home Palms House fear that the scheme will result in increased traffic noise and
exhaust fumes. Increased traffic flow poses a higher risk to vehicles entering and leaving the Home
Palms House car park. There will be a loss of privacy for those residents living on the first floor
whose windows will now be regularly overlooked by double decker bus passengers.

Page 56



TORRE AND UPTON

communitypartnership

we don’t just talk - we do!

b)Residents in Morgan Avenue fear the scheme will cause more drivers to use this road as a rat run.
They are not reassured by the poor response and engagement there has been to long-standing
concerns they have raised with Highways and the Transport Working Party following accidents,
injuries and damage caused by drivers.

c)Businesses in Torre anticipate increased custom as a result of traffic reversal.

d)The junction at Central Church should remain controlled by lights, and not converted into a
round-about. This is important to ensure the safety and convenience of pedestrians using this busy
route.

e)There is much concern that the current bus related proposals will be detrimental to the elderly,
infirm and those with young children and may deter people from travelling by bus into the town
centre, which will be counter-productive.

f)The meeting heard anecdotal evidence that the traffic flow monitoring stations were only in situ
for a short duration and “out of holiday season”, thereby providing a poor basis for assessment.

g)There is a belief that the Transport Working Party has not conducted site visits. Some attendees
considered that this is detrimental to making such important and far reaching decisions.

Footnote: Steering Group members and members of the public at the meeting had the advantage of
access to up-to-date plans and information courtesy of Highways. Such detailed information is not
available online or at Connections as part of the Notice of Proposals for Union Street or Tor Hill
Road Orders.

Page 57



TORRE AND UPTON

communtypartnership

we don’t just talk - we do!

Response to:
BOROUGH OF TORBAY (TOR HILL ROAD) (PROHIBITION OF RIGHT TURN)
ORDER 2015

The above Order was discussed by a public meeting of the Community Partnership held on 18"
November 2015. This document records the recommendations of that meeting and a summary of
the discussion held. This forms the formal response by the Torre & Upton Community Partnership
to the Order.

BACKGROUND:

The Partnership has held two Public Meetings (21st October 2015 and 18th November 2015) at
which the primary topic has been the reversal of traffic flow through Torre. This has been in
response to public concerns about some aspects of the scheme, and the need for information about
progress; timescales and actions taken in response to previous concerns.

The Mayor; Tormohun Ward Councillors; a Stagecoach representative and Highways officers were
invited to the November meeting in order to provide a complete, up-to-date and accurate statement
about the scheme and respond to public questions. Alas, neither the Mayor nor Highways officers
could attend due to other commitments. Cllrs. Lang and Excell were advised by Council
Governance Support not to attend due to potential conflict of interest, as both own business in the
area. The absence of Highways Officers also underpinned this decision. The Deputy Mayor, ClIr
Derek Mills, attended on behalf of the Mayor. Ward Councillor, Mandy Darling, attended. Mr
Graham Bailey represented Stagecoach Ltd. As no Highways Officers could attend, the Partnership
Chair, Mrs Susie Colley, was given a briefing by officers ahead of the meeting and provided with
display materials.

The meeting co-incided with the publication of the Notice of Proposals for Union Street and Tor
Hill Road. So, it was decided that the outcome of the meeting would form the Partnership's formal
response to these Notices.

Please note that in January 2015 the Partnership submitted the following statement in response to
the original public consultation:

“The majority of members of the Torre and Upton CP welcome the reversal of the traffic flow
through Torre. However, it was felt that there was insufficient detail provided for the group to
decide whether the route should continue straight ahead, or follow Trematon Avenue, round past
the library. The main concern for the direct route was the fact the majority of traffic coming into
Torquay town centre flows down Tor Hill Road, and this could lead to serious traffic jams and/or a
confusion of traffic lights by the town hall.”

Page 58



TORRE AND UPTON.

communitypartnership

we don’t just talk - we do!

The Partnership still recognises the potential benefits of the scheme but has identified a number of
aspects that we believe need to be considered and addressed by the Transport Working Party, if the
scheme is to be a success.

RECOMMENDATIONS relevant to Tor Hill Road:

a)That all members of the Transport Working Party make a publicised site visit to Brunswick
Square and Morgan Avenue prior to it's meeting on 17" December, in order to be fully aware of
the implications of the Order on local residents, businesses, pedestrians and road users.

b)That the Transport Working Party questions the robustness of vehicle monitoring results which
appear to be based on very limited timeframes and seasonal traffic volumes.

c)A “No Right Turn” from Tor Hill Road into Morgan Avenue should be introduced, in order to

prevent Morgan Avenue being used as a short cut for vehicles seeking to avoid the junction at
Central Church.

d)That further consultation, based upon robust and transparent information, is undertaken to
establish the impact on bus passengers in terms of fares; bus stops; routes and services.

OTHER POINTS OF DISCUSSION/CONCERN relevant to Tor Hill Road:

a)Residents in Morgan Avenue fear the scheme will cause more drivers to use this road as a rat run.
They are not reassured by the poor response and engagement there has been to long-standing
concerns they have raised with Highways and the Transport Working Party following accidents,
injuries and damage caused by drivers.

b)The junction at Central Church should remain controlled by lights, and not converted into a
round-about. This is important to ensure the safety and convenience of pedestrians using this busy
route.

c)There is much concern that the current bus related proposals will be detrimental to the elderly,
infirm and those with young children and may deter people from travelling by bus into the town
centre, which will be counter-productive.

f)The meeting heard anecdotal evidence that the traffic flow monitoring stations were only in situ
for a short duration and “out of holiday season”, thereby providing a poor basis for assessment.

g)There is a belief that the Transport Working Party has not conducted site visits. Some attendees
considered that this is detrimental to making such important and far reaching decisions.

Page 59



TORRE AND UPTON

_ _""u | t'-'l

communypartnersh/p

we don’t just talk - we do!

Footnote: Steering Group members and members of the public at the meeting had the advantage of
access to up-to-date plans and information courtesy of Highways. Such detailed information is not

available online or at Connections as part of the Notice of Proposals for Union Street or Tor Hill
Road Orders.

Page 60



Agenda Item 4
Appendix 3

Torre Reversal — Objections to Advertised Traffic Regulation Orders and
Engineers Responses

Comments in response to the list of suggested objections which have been
generated by the residents of Home Palms.

e There is no loss of car parking in the area surrounding Home Palms, as this
area is currently subject to double yellow line restrictions. We are looking to
provide an on-street parking bay for either emergency vehicles or loading, the
actual designation for this will be decided upon following consultation with
Home Palms. However, it should be noted that a loading bay could be used
by any of the other local businesses in the immediate area. It is proposed that
the existing double yellow line restrictions will be changed to ‘no loading at
any time’, preventing the parking of vehicles and therefore restricting the
traffic flow.

e There is short term ‘free’ parking within the Brunswick Square car park, where
carers have parked on previous visits with Home Palms or illegally on the
adjacent double yellow lines. It is not up to the authority to provide free
parking for carers.

e Traffic flow on Morgan Avenue will be reviewed both before and after the
introduction of the scheme and the situation reviewed in the 2016 / 2017
financial year when funding will be available for traffic calming works if
required.

e The scheme will not make the visibility at the entrance / exit of Home Palms
any worse, as passing traffic will be pushed away from the existing kerb line.

e Vehicles should not reverse out on to the public highway and provision should
be made to turn vehicles around within the boundaries of Home Palms House.

e With regard to vehicle emissions Stagecoach confirm that all of the Scania
vehicles operating on the 12 service are built to the Euro 5 emission level. In
fact just over 50% of the Torquay fleet are now Euro 5. Any new vehicles
from 2016 will be to the very latest Euro 6 emission level.

e There should not be an increase of traffic into the town centre, it should be the
same amount of traffic, requiring the same number of parking spaces, just
entering town via a different route.

¢ Regarding the bus stops at Castle Circus, | can confirm that the number 12
bus will still stop opposite the library on the way into Torquay. However at the
moment, on the way out of town, it is likely to stop in the vicinity of Central
Church and not loop around Castle Circus.

Page 61



This is a commercial decision made by Stagecoach, however | believe a
number of councillors are meeting with Stagecoach in the near future with a
view to asking them to rethink their position on this matter.

To allow traffic to pass to the right of Home Palms and in front of the shops
along the current pedestrianised area would require a major reconstruction of
the existing carriageway to allow the passage of buses.

To allow buses to proceed straight down to the town centre via Union Street,
rather than looping around Castle Circus, posed a problem with the junction,
especially with the provision of the right turn into Tor Hill Road (towards
Central Church).

The town hall development is already effectively a roundabout and is
unchanged by this scheme.

The project is funded via a Business Case submission to the Heart of the
South West Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and should it not progress all
monies will return to the LEP, they cannot be used for other purposes.

We are looking to place an uncontrolled pedestrian crossing to the town
centre side of the car park entrance.

Highway legislation does not allow the placement of ‘concealed entrance’
signs.

A further Traffic Regulation Order and weight limit would be required to
prevent the through traffic of HGV’s and force them to use Teignmouth Road
and Lymington Road. Only the Police could enforce.

The scheme will not make the visibility at the entrance / exit of Home Palms
any worse, as passing traffic will be pushed away from the existing kerb line.

Changes to the current traffic restrictions will allow the traffic to flow more
freely as loading / unloading vehicles and users of blue badges will not be
allowed to park around the entrance to Home Palms.

Highway legislation does not allow the placement of mirrors on the public
highway.

The project is funded via a Business Case submission to the Heart of the
South West Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and should it not progress all
monies will return to the LEP, they cannot be used for other purposes.

Page 62



Other comments received:

20" November 2015

We are looking to place an uncontrolled pedestrian crossing to the town
centre side of the car park entrance.

The scheme will not make the visibility at the entrance / exit of Home Palms
any worse, as passing traffic will be pushed away from the existing kerb line.

Highway legislation does not allow the placement of mirrors on the public
highway or of ‘concealed entrance’ signs in the urban area.

There is no loss of car parking in the area surrounding Home Palms, as this
area is currently subject to double yellow line restrictions.

There is provision for a bus stop for the no.12 service (outbound) in the
vicinity of St Efrides Road.

23" November 2015

General objection to the scheme which was passed by full council on the 5
February 2015.

23" November 2015

General objection to the scheme which was passed by full council on the 5
February 2015.

Highway legislation does not allow the placement of mirrors on the public
highway.

We are looking to place an uncontrolled pedestrian crossing to the town
centre side of the car park entrance.

3" December 2015

The scheme will not make the visibility at the entrance / exit of Home Palms
any worse, as passing traffic will be pushed away from the existing kerb line.

Vehicles should not reverse out on to the public highway and provision should
be made to turn vehicles around within the boundaries of Home Palms House.

With regard to vehicle emissions Stagecoach confirm that all of the Scania
vehicles operating on the 12 service are built to the Euro 5 emission level. In
fact just over 50% of the Torquay fleet are now Euro 5. Any new vehicles
from 2016 will be to the very latest Euro 6 emission level.

Page 63



There is no loss of car parking in the area surrounding Home Palms, as this
area is currently subject to double yellow line restrictions. We are looking to
provide an on-street parking bay for either emergency vehicles or loading, the
actual designation for this will be decided upon following consultation with
Home Palms. However, it should be noted that a loading bay could be used
by any of the other local businesses in the immediate area. It is proposed that
the existing double yellow line restrictions will be changed to ‘no loading at
any time’, preventing the parking of vehicles and therefore restricting the
traffic flow.

3" December 2015

The reversal was to allow all of the shops in Torre to be promoted, not just the
ones in the vicinity of Brunswick Square.

To allow traffic to pass to the right of Home Palms and in front of the shops
along the current pedestrianised area would require a major reconstruction of
the existing carriageway to allow the passage of buses.

A further Traffic regulation Order and weight limit would be required to prevent
the through traffic of HGV’s and force them to use Teignmouth Road and
Lymington Road.

3" December 2015

Regarding the bus stops at Castle Circus, | can confirm that the number 12
bus will still stop opposite the library on the way into Torquay. However at the
moment, on the way out of town, it is likely to stop in the vicinity of Central
Church and not loop around Castle Circus.

This is a commercial decision made by Stagecoach, however | believe a
number of councillors are meeting with Stagecoach in the near future with a
view to asking them to rethink their position on this matter.

5" December 2015

Regarding parking on Tor Hill Road, a loss of three spaces may take place if a
bus stop is located in this area. The residents may wish to object when the
required Traffic Regulation is advertised in the near future.

Page 64



Agenda Iltem 5

ORBAY
COUNCL. i msy

Meeting: Transport Working Party Date: 17" December 2015

Wards Affected: All Wards in Torbay

Report Title: Transport Asset Management Plan

Executive Lead Contact Details: Councillor R Excell, Executive Lead for Community

Services

Supporting Officer Contact Details: Tim Northway, Principal Engineer (Network

Management)

11

2.1

3.1

4.1

Purpose

Torbay Council has formally adopted the principles of Asset Management as set out in the
Strategic Transport Asset Management Plan published in May 2014.

To accompany this plan the Council is required to publish its Asset Management Strategy to set
out its intended methods of maximising the use of highway maintenance funding in looking after
this essential asset.

The purpose of this report is to seek approval to adopt this Strategy and to publish it on the
Council’s website.

Proposed Decision

It is proposed that members recommend that this Strategy is adopted for use within the Torbay
area. (See Appendix 1)

Action Needed

It is recommended that members approve the use of the Asset Management Strategy, thus
proving their acceptance of the principles of asset management techniques in maintaining the
publicly maintainable highway asset.

Summary

The Council has already adopted an Asset Management Plan and Policy, proving elected
member’s commitment to efficiently looking after its highway network. The adoption of this
‘Strategy’ document is now required to enable the authority to be in a position to further prove its
commitment to asset management principles. The proof of using this strategy is required to bid
for the new Highway Maintenance Incentive Fund, thus protecting future maintenance funding
bids.

Page 65



Supporting Information

5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

7.1

8.1

Position

Torbay Council has been using the principles of asset management and in particular
concentrating on using preventative maintenance methods for many years. However, following
the need to prove this and to be able to protect future funding streams, documented evidence is
required.

April 2016 will see the implementation of Whole of Government Accounting, which will see the
highway infrastructure network included in an authority’s inventory account. This will eventually
enable the efficiency of an authority’s maintenance techniques to be assessed and allow the
better performing authorities to be rewarded from an Incentive Fund.

In May 2013 a Department for Transport sponsored guidance document was produced by the
‘Highways Maintenance Efficiency Programme’ (HMEP) which contained a series of
recommendations. This document is available to view on the following web link -
www.ukroadsliaisongroup.org/en/utilities/document-summary.cfm?docid=5C49F48E-
1CEQ0-477F-933ACBFA169AF8CB Whilst most of these were already in operation within this
authority, the document did however, make a total of 14 recommendations for highway
authorities to consider regarding asset management. Most of these were implemented as toolkits
associated with the production of an asset management plan became available, but the Strategy
was not fully developed at the time that the Plan was published. This is now being remedied and
will be further evidence of our elected member’s commitment into providing an efficient highway
maintenance service.

Possibilities and Options

Option 1
The Strategy is adopted and endorsed.
Option 2

The Strategy is not adopted.

Consultation

The Portfolio Holder has been consulted on the content and intentions behind this ‘Strategy’.
Risks

If the Strategy is not adopted, there is a risk for the authority to lose 25% of its indicative highway
maintenance funding from the Department for Transport by 2018. All highway authorities are

expected to demonstrate their future commitment to adopting all the principles associated with
efficient highway asset management.

Appendices:

Appendix 1 — Infrastructure Asset Management Strategy

Additional Information:

None

Documents available in Members’ Rooms: None

Background Papers:

None

Page 66


http://www.ukroadsliaisongroup.org/en/utilities/document-summary.cfm?docid=5C49F48E-1CE0-477F-933ACBFA169AF8CB
http://www.ukroadsliaisongroup.org/en/utilities/document-summary.cfm?docid=5C49F48E-1CE0-477F-933ACBFA169AF8CB

Agenda Iltem 5
Appendix 1

ORBAY

COUNCIL ~ ' ~>

Infrastructure Asset

Management Strategy

The vision, scope and context of Asset Management
of the Highways and Transport Infrastructure

for Community and Customer Services.

Version 1

Highways and Transport Services

Page 67



Current Document Status

Version

1

Approving body

Transport Working
Party

Date Date of formal
approval
Responsible officer Tim Northway Review date 2 years from approval
Principal Engineer
Location
Version History
Date Version Author/Editor Comments
1 Tim Northway Final

Equality Impact Assessment Record

Date Type of Stage/level Summary of Completed by | Impact
assessment completed actions taken Assessment
conducted (where decisions review date

applicable) made
Full Complete N/A Tim Northway,
lan Jones

Corporate Quality Assessment Record

Date

Completed by

Tim Northway

Document retention

Document retention period

5 years in hard and electronic copies

Page 68




Infrastructure Asset Management Strategy

Introduction

Aim of the strategy

Scope

Strategy statement

Strategy Detail

Consultation and engagement
Performance and risk management
Communicating the Strategy
Breaches and non-compliance
Information and training

Evaluation and review

Page 69

5/11
12
12
12
12
12

12



Introduction

The purpose of this Infrastructure Asset Management Strategy is to outline
how the service will approach the task of managing our most valuable and
important public infrastructure. It is the partner document to the previously
published Infrastructure Asset Management Policy.

Aim of the strategy

Effective and efficient management of the infrastructure is a key factor in the
ability of the Council to deliver its services. Taken together the infrastructure
managed by the service forms the largest and most valuable public asset
within the Council’s control, with a gross value in excess of £0.7billion.

Torbay Council’s vision is to be a high performing authority using resources
well to secure good public services for all and to be a strong and effective
community leader, ensuring sound investment in a sustainable future for
Torbay. This vision translates into core values which include:

e Forward thinking,
e People orientated,
e Adaptable,

e Integrity,

The provision, maintenance and management of public infrastructure such as
highways, bridges, public rights of way, public open spaces and coastal assets
are key drivers in the delivery of these values.

Asset management is by definition ‘forward thinking’, customer aspiration
considerations are part of being ‘people orientated’, decision makers looking
after this asset need to be adaptable and to exercise integrity with difficult
choices.

With the current level of funding for maintaining this most valuable asset being
under extreme pressure, the management needs to be undertaken in a
considered manner which takes into account maintenance needs and financial
resources. This must then be balanced against potential risk of service failure
and subsequent demands on the same public finances for damage and liability
claims.

Page 70



Decision makers and customers alike therefore need to be fully aware of the
conflicting demands on maintaining this asset within the reality of the existing
financial climate.

Scope

This strategy is applicable to all public infrastructure managed and maintained
by the Council as part of the Highways and Transport service; it also links into
other service areas including all public open spaces.

Strategy Statement

The Council believes that effective asset management is fundamental to the
delivery of its services and the delivery of its long term vision and strategy.
Asset Management principles enable informed decisions to be made about
investment and maintenance funding; assist in the targeting of resources to
where they can be most effective and enables the identification and
management of the risks associated with its statutory duties to manage and
maintain public infrastructure.

STRATEGY DETAIL

In adopting an Asset Management approach to the maintenance of our entire
infrastructure we will be implementing a methodology which includes:

e A systematic approach which takes a long-term view

e The consideration of the whole of life costs of maintaining an asset

e The explicit consideration of customer expectations and defined levels of
service

e The optimisation and prioritisation of works based on assessed needs
derived from the defined levels of service

e The use of lifecycle planning to inform the optimal treatment at each
stage of the assets life

The implementation of a formalised approach enables better decision making
which takes into account the relationship between cost and performance. This

Page 71



in turn allows potential for the delivery of an improved level of service for the
resources available or where owing to budgetary constraints it can assist in
ensuring that the effects of a reduction in the level of service is managed
through the efficient deployment of available resources such that risks are
identified, balanced and mitigated in so far as is possible.

The Council’s priorities for maintaining this asset with the current levels of
funding will be:-

e Prioritise the A & B road network that carries the higher levels of traffic

e Use preventative maintenance treatments on roads that are still in a
condition to benefit from these.

e Maintain modern estate roads in accordance with lifecycle planning
guidance with periodic preventative intervention at the optimum times.

e Use additional DfT funding on preventative treatments of older estate
roads to reduce further pothole proliferation and to seal vulnerable
unbound road formations.

e Target worst first responses at shorter lengths of affected carriageways
pending more suitable funding opportunities.

Strategic Framework

This strategy document together with its partner document “Infrastructure
Asset Management Policy” sits within a wider asset management framework
and forms a link between the Corporate Business Plan and objectives and
associated service and operational plans such as the Highway Maintenance
Manual, Transport Asset Management Plan, Safety Inspection Manual and
other similar documents.

The responsibility for the delivery of this Asset Management framework sits
within Community and Customer Services.

Page 72



The Asset Management Approach

The Torbay Council’s vision recognises the following themes:

Scope: The Asset Management Plan is primarily to optimise maintenance of
the entire network. The asset encompasses all areas of adopted highway and
public rights of way within the boundary of Torbay.

Strategic approach: a systematic process that takes a long term view
Whole of life: the whole of life / life cycle of an asset is considered
Optimisation: maximising benefits by balancing competing demands
Resource allocation: allocation of resources based on assessed needs
Customer focus: explicit consideration of customer’s expectations

However, in adopting the principles of Asset Management it should be noted
that the primary drivers in decision making processes depend on a detailed
knowledge of the extent of the highway inventory and in particular its overall
condition, but also that customer satisfaction must be considered within the
end product.

Inventory and data Management: Torbay Council holds information on various
assets on a number of different platforms. These asset databases are being
logged on a single common platform and will provide individual layers on the
Council’s GIS mapping system. Whilst most highway inventory data is already
recorded in this manner, other infrastructure assets are being assimilated as
resources permit.

The Council has comprehensive inspection and survey schedules, tailored to
specific assets, taking into account the national guidance and codes of practice.
These regimes are documented in the relevant maintenance manuals and will
be updated in line with changes in national guidance.

Page 73



Levels of Service: Are a means of describing the standard of service that is
provided or required. The development of Levels of Service must reflect
organisational constraints. While it may be possible to influence and reduce
some of these, many will remain as permanent restrictions. These will include:

e |nadequate or unpredictable financial resources — the desired level of
service may not be achievable

e Resource constraints — if financial constraints are removed it still may
not be possible to resource short term fixes

e Procurement constraints — again a consideration if finance is not a factor
e Political constraints — this may affect the availability of funding

e If whole life costings are to be rigidly implemented it may lead to the
appearance that roads that ‘seem to be OK’ take precedence over some
residential roads that are ‘falling apart’.

Page 74



Lifecycle Planning: Is a mechanism which enables links to be made between a
particular asset, levels of service, current condition, maintenance needs and
funding provisions.

The diagram below shows the lifecycle of a carriageway comparing condition
against time. In this example there is also a direct relationship between the
forecast condition and the costs of the suggested treatments. The optimum
intervention treatment would be to carry out the lower cost preventative
treatments at suitable time intervals thus enabling the carriageway condition
to remain in a good stable condition. The worst case cost scenario is to allow
the asset to deteriorate to a point where the only option is an expensive
replacement treatment.

The best case scenario requires that adequate funding is available for the
optimum treatments at the time that these are still applicable. Missing these
preventative treatments due to inadequate funding provision leads to the
gradual decline in overall network conditions and this is not sustainable in the
long term.

New

—
-~
-
-~
~

Preventive =S Rehabiltation
maintenance

Preventive
maintenance

Forecast
condition

Replacement N

Poor
Time

The introduction of Whole of Government Accounts set out in the CIPFA Code
for Transport Infrastructure Assets will provide evidence of the need to fund
timely maintenance interventions. In the meantime most highway authorities
are limited to seeing a damage limitation approach being applied to their
highway assets. Future monetary depreciation of the highway asset will appear

Page 75



in an authority’s financial balance sheet. This will make informed investment
strategies and suitable budget allocation all the more necessary.

Torbay Council’s current predicted trend in the overall condition of their
unclassified local road network, based on carriageway data (which is 70% of
the entire value of the transport infrastructure) is in the diagram below:-

Carriageway Lifecycle Planning Toolkit

CONDITION GRAPH h fa. I-. Q

Select Asset Group: (|Urban Local 1~

Asset: Urban Local Scenario:

% Distribution of Asset in Condition Bands

2022 2023

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

The diagram is taken directly from the Council’s Transport Asset Management
Plan (2014 version) and was derived from the toolkit provided within the CIPFA
Code for Transport Infrastructure Assets. It is based on the currently predicted
budgetary provisions.

Page 76




Risk Management

Managing risk is an integral part of managing our transport assets. All activities
from management, identification and prioritisation of works to the
establishment of budgets have risks associated with them. These risks need
managing. The assessment of comparative risk is therefore a key asset
management tool. It can be used at a tactical level within the asset
management process, to assist with option appraisal and selection, via
assessment of the comparative risks of:

e Providing differing levels of service;
e Funding works on different assets; or
e Funding network improvements as opposed to maintenance works.

Page 77



Consultation and engagement

In drafting this strategy we have taken note of National Highways and
Transportation public perception surveys and are presenting this strategy to
the Transportation Working Party. We have also consulted with the Portfolio
Holder for Highways Management.

Performance and risk management

The maintenance and management of public infrastructure has been
undertaken for many years and in drafting this strategy we have identified and
taken note of all likely risks and performance issues. The mitigation and
management of risks and issues are covered in subsidiary category specific
service documentation such as the Highway Maintenance Manual and the
Asset Management Plan.

Communicating the strategy

This strategy will be made available on the Council’s website as will other
documents considered to be of value to interested parties.

Breaches and non-compliance

Non compliance with this strategy may leave the Council in a position where it
is not able to discharge its statutory duty to maintain and lead to a
deterioration of the value and condition of publicly owned infrastructure.

Information and training

Further information concerning this strategy may be obtained from the
Highway Network Management team based in Torquay Town Hall.

Evaluation and review

This strategy will be reviewed regularly as further asset management tools and
systems are developed.

Page 78



Prepared by

Tim Northway

Principal Engineer (Network Management)
Community and Customer Services

16" July 2015

If you would like this information
in another format please contact:

Torbay Council

Town Hall

Torquay

TQ1 3DY

Telephone: 01803 207914

Email: highways@torbay.gov.uk

Page 79


mailto:highways@torbay.gov.uk

Agenda Item 6

ORBAY
e — "

Meeting: Transport Working Party Date: 17" December 2015

Wards Affected: Clifton with Maidenway, Cockington with Chelston, Preston, Shiphay
with the Willows

Report Title: Potential Review of Torbay Ring Road Signing and Traffic Regulation Order

Executive Lead Contact Details: Councillor R Excell, Executive Lead for

Community Services

Supporting Officer Contact Details: John Clewer, Senior Engineer - Highways
Development & Traffic

11

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

3.1

Purpose

Torbay Council have been contacted by Devon County Council Highways officers
following a number of costly barrier strikes on their section of the A380. They
intend to carry out works to mitigate this by a mixture of lining/signing works and a
reduction in the current speed limit on Marldon Way (see APPENDIX 1).

As a result of these proposed changes Highways wish to take the opportunity to
review the signage and current speed limits on the Torbay maintained sections of
the A380 Hamelin Way/Hellevoetsluis Way (see APPENDIX 2), so that they reflect
the current lay-out of the highway.

The purpose of this report is to seek the Working Party’s support to carry out further
detailed design work in readiness to progress a scheme for implementation as part
of 2016/17 Local Transport Plan Capital funding.

Proposed Decision

It is proposed that members recommend that Highways carry out further detailed
design work, in readiness to progress a scheme to implementation under the 2016 /
2017 LTP integrated transport block funding for highway signage.

That any proposed changes to speed restrictions between Gallows Gate
roundabout and the South Devon Link Road junction are advertised following the
approval of the Executive Lead Member and implemented if no objections received.

Action Needed
Following the recommendation of the proposals outlined in item 2 (above), a
revised Traffic Regulation order for any proposed changes to speed restrictions will

need to be advertised. Any objections will be presented to the Executive Lead
Member for a decision.

Page 80



4.1

Summary

By taking a combined approach to signage and speed limits on this strategic route,
both Devon County Council and Torbay Council will be taking the opportunity to
improve safety and reduce collisions in the future.

Supporting Information

5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

Position

Devon County Council report that following a number of crash barrier strikes
(twenty between 2013 — 2015 at a cost of approximately £25,000) they intend to
carry out works on their section of the A380 Torbay Ring Road (Hellevoetsluis
Way/Marldon Way) to mitigate this by:

¢ Introducing a 40mph speed limit between the Preston Down Road
roundabout and Churscombe Cross (Marldon Road), this is currently 70mph.

e Traffic Regulation Order and signing to tie in with existing speed limits on
Torbay maintained roads, including the proposed realigned Kings Ash Road
(construction due to start in approximately January 2017) to the South of the
Churscombe Cross roundabourt.

e Change the lane designation through the Preston Down roundabout, left
hand lane = straight on / turn left, right hand lane = straight on / turn right.

e See APPENDIX 2 for further information.

e Torbay Council have also suffered from a number of barrier strikes within
their section of this route.

As a result of these changes Highways wish to take the opportunity to review the
signage and current speed limits on the Torbay maintained sections of the A380
Hamelin Way/Hellevoetsluis Way (see APPENDIX 2), so that they reflect the
current lay-out of the highway.

This ties in with the planned review of the speed limit on the A380 Hamelin Way
following the recent opening of the South Devon Link Road/South Devon Highway
and there is concern that vehicles travelling on Hamelin Way between Gallows
Gate roundabout and the South Devon Link Road may be travelling at
inappropriate speeds on this currently derestricted section.

The purpose of this report is to seek support to carry out further detailed design
work (including the preparation of appropriate Traffic Regulation Orders) in
readiness to progress a scheme to advertising / implementation during the 2016/17
financial year.

No funding is currently identified for this proposed scheme, however consideration
should be given to allocate funding from the 2016 / 2017 LTP integrated transport
block for highway signage to fund this improvement.

Possibilities and Options

Option 1

Page 81



It is recommended that members give support for further detailed design and
consultation work to be undertaken, in readiness to progress the scheme to
implementation, with suitable funding being allocated from the 2016 / 2017 LTP
integrated transport block for highway signage and that the speed limit on Hamelin
Way, between Gallows Gate roundabout and the South Devon Link Road is
reviewed.

6.2 Option 2
Do not support the undertaking of further design works.
7 Preferred Solution/Option

7.1  Members are recommended that item 6, option 1 above, would be the most
appropriate option. However, members should be aware that advertising any
changes made to the existing Traffic Regulation Orders as part of these works may
attract objections, which will have to be presented to the Executive Lead for
Community Services for consideration.

8 Consultation

8.1 Consultation will be undertaken with Council ward members and major
stakeholders prior to the finalisation of any scheme. Changes to the existing Traffic
Regulation Orders are involved, which will need to be advertised and should there
be any objections these will be presented to the Executive Lead for Community
Services for consideration.

9 Risks

9.1  Whilst consultation will be undertaken with major stakeholders prior to the
introduction of works, it is possible that when the alterations to the existing Traffic
Regulation Orders (TRO) are advertised (both on site and in the local media), these
will attract objections from the members of the public. Any such objections will then
have to be referred back to the Executive Lead for Community Services for
consideration.

9.2 There is arisk that if this scheme is not progressed that there will be discrepancies
in the signage on this road between the Devon County Council and Torbay Council
maintained sections, which may increase confusion to drivers on this route.

Appendices:
Appendix 1 - Layout of the proposed works to be undertaken by Devon County Council.
Appendix 2 - Area of the A380 Hamelin Way/Hellevoetsluis Way to be reviewed.

Additional Information:
None

Documents available in Members’ Rooms:
None

Background Papers:
None

Page 82



Agenda Iltem 6

N U= T E AT BRWTE T - T T — .
@© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100022695. f r A e n d I x 1
e W SN AL 3 ¢ A ./
1 { i R HE

=
Proposed speed limit change
70 mph to 40 mph ||

- A B 3
W L

.
Y
o g

AetB e

a1

A -

\
A
>
* 5 ¥
7 2

=)

e




\Ellacombe ;-
5 \Plantation

S, > T SN TN
B Appendix 2

TWP Report 17/12/15

"I Potential review of A380
Torbay ring road signing

| and traffic regulation orders

Lo Covent;y Farm ) ==\
S ndustridl Estate :/w‘“ O
S 4 \
.
Kerswel
\
y

Ias
m
) 3
\
=
h3 "7
'
i |
I
b
o
R
T\ I
L . Gardens
S /7 B
N

) @

e

Scott's Bridge.

e —
o e I~
nswell 1%7,‘/"} (D

<5 TSNS
PN

Hopl)

/=

Barters (7
Farm

< South
Whilboreugh

Red Hill

A Prouts Barn

)
2
3
e
]
Windmill "
(disused) | FFM
5

Crossfield

&
Y [F sm Styles
Garden Centre

West End e
Nurseries /¢*~

« 147m \\\\Q 5

Ui T .»
e
Ry

,Egﬁf )

T
3L

Lt

gl-

Glenside
Poultry Fag

\/ ¢ Shipha
i _

%
slal
ALY

=

g
School

100m

Little Cockington
Wood

Highér
Compton
Batton

-
2
&

%

3
0
\2
(a2
2

/

Farmyard
Corner gg,




	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Last Meeting
	Minutes

	4 Torre Reversal - Objections to Advertised Order
	APPENDIX 1
	APPENDIX 2 FINAL
	Appendix 3

	5 Transport Asset Management Plan
	APPENDIX 1

	6 Potential review of Torbay Ring Road Signing and TRO's
	APPENDIX 1
	Appendix 2


